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          2                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Please stand for the

                   pledge.

          3                     (Pledge of Allegiance)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Roll please, Ken.

          4                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Miss Todd?

                                MS. TODD:     Here.

          5                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Bianchi?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Here.

          6                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Bernard?

                                MR. BERNARD:     Here.

          7                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Kessler?

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Here.

          8                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Kline?

                                MR. KLINE:     Here.

          9                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Klarl?

                                MR. KLARL:     Here.

         10                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Vergano?

                                MR. VERGANO:     Here.

         11                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Kehoe?

                                MR. KEHOE:     Here.

         12                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Klarl?

                                MR. KLARL:     Here?

         13                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Mr. Cohen and myself.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I don't believe we

         14        have any changes to the agenda this evening.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     No changes to the

         15        agenda.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  Could I

         16        please have a motion to approve the minutes of March

                   7th?

         17                     MR. KLINE:     So moved.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     May I have a second?

         18                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         19        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         20                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Our first

                   item this evening is a application.  APPLICATION FOR

         21        WILLIAM FOLLINI FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL AND

                   A STEEP SLOPE PERMIT FOR A PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY HOUSE

         22        LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF BETHEA DRIVE APPROXIMATELY

                   500 FEET WEST OF SPRING VALLEY ROAD AS SHOWN ON A 2

         23        PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

                   FOR WILLIAM & LORRAINE FOLLINI" PREPARED BY CRONIN

         24        ENGINEERING, P.E., P.C., LATEST REVISION DATED APRIL

                   21, 2006 (SEE PRIOR PB-9)

         25                     MR. CRONIN:     Good evening.
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          2                     MR. KLARL:     I recuse myself.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Mr. Klarl is

          3        recusing himself on this application.

                                MR. CRONIN:     Mr. Chairman, members of

          4        the board.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     We do have a

          5        resolution, I believe you have seen the resolution.

                   Miss Todd.

          6                     MS. TODD:     Mr. Chairman, I'd like to

                   make a motion that we approve resolution number 18-06

          7        with the attached 9 conditions.  I also wanted to --

                   because the site is so full of Mountain Laurel, to find

          8        a way to get some wording in condition number 7 about

                   the importance of protecting the native vegetation, not

          9        only just the evergreen trees, but the shrubs as well,

                   Mountain Laurels.  I'm not exactly sure how to word

         10        that.  Something like to the greatest extent possible

                   the applicants will preserve the existing Mountain

         11        Laurel shrubs on the site.  What I'm concerned about is

                   during the blasting process if rocks would fall down

         12        and mistakenly wipe out a whole slope.

                                MR. VERGANO:     How about mountain Laurel

         13        shrubs shall be preserved to the greatest extent

                   possible, something like that.

         14                     MS. TODD:     I think we should have a

                   landscape person, a very good landscape person come in

         15        there and wrap the tree areas where you are going to be

                   blasting with a very firm protective construction

         16        material to keep the rocks from going down the hill.

                                MR. CRONIN:     We will take some

         17        appropriate measures.  I'd like to remind the board

                   when the blasting does take place that steel mats will

         18        be used definitely to be placed over the area where the

                   blasting will be take place to try to minimize any fly

         19        rocks, but certainly we will do whatever we can to

                   protect the vegetation on the site.

         20                     MS. TODD:     I appreciate the fact that

                   you are willing to work with us to reduce the amount of

         21        blasting in rock removal by 30 percent.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         22                     MR. KLINE:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         23        There's also a condition there, I think it's condition

                   5, about some slight relocation of the house to the

         24        approval of the Architectural Review as well as Ed

                   Vergano, the engineer of the town.

         25                     MR. CRONIN:     We will work with Mr.

          1                     PB 5-06 BARSUCH/JONES/DEPREEZ                4

          2        Vergano and the Architectural Board.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

          3                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  The next

          4        application.  APPLICATION OF JOSEPH M. & JANICE BARSUCH

                   AND DANIEL N. JONES AND MAGDA MARIA DEPREEZ FOR

          5        PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION FOR A

                   LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT BETWEEN 2 EXISTING LOTS CONSISTING

          6        OF 2 ACRES WITH NO NEW BUILDING LOTS CREATED FOR

                   PROPERTY LOCATED AT 38 & 48 WOODDALE AVENUE AS SHOWN ON

          7        A DRAWING ENTITLED "SURVEY MAP SHOWING PROPOSED LOT

                   LINE REVISION PREPARED FOR JOSEPH M. & JANICE BARSUCH

          8        AND DANIEL N. JONES AND MAGDA MARIA DEPREEZ" PREPARED

                   BY ROBERT BAXTER, PLS, DATED FEBRUARY 16TH, 2006.

          9                     MR. BAXTER:     Good evening.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Mr. Bernard.

         10                     MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I move we

                   adopt approval resolution number 19-06.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

         13                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Final

         14        resolution of the evening.  APPLICATION OF MICHAEL F.X.

                   RYAN FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL AND A SPECIAL

         15        PERMIT FOR A BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL OFFICE IN A

                   TRANSITIONAL LOCATION AT 3005 EAST MAIN STREET (ROUTE

         16        6) PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 307 (ZONING) OF THE TOWN OF

                   CORTLANDT CODE AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED "RYAN

         17        SITE PLAN" PREPARED BY BRENDAN FITZGERALD, P.E., LATEST

                   REVISION DATED FEBRUARY 24, 2006.  Mr. Bianchi?

         18                     MR. BIANCHI:     Mr. Chairman, I'll move

                   to adopt resolution number 20-06 which approves the

         19        application.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

         20                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         21        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         22                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  Thank you.

                   Onto the public hearing portion of the agenda.  The

         23        first public hearing is a new public hearing.

                   APPLICATION OF SANTUCCI CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE

         24        PROPERTY OF SABRINAS HOLDING LLC & DAMIAN DEVELOPMENT,

                   LLC, FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL AND FOR WETLAND AND

         25        STEEP SLOPE PERMITS FOR A 2 LOT MINOR SUBDIVISION WITH
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          2        A LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT OF 3.495 ACRES LOCATED AT THE END

                   OF RADZVILLA ROAD OFF OF DUTCH STREET AS SHOWN ON A 6

          3        PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION

                   PLAN AND LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT FOR SANTUCCI CONSTRUCTION,

          4        INC." PREPARED BY CRONIN ENGINEERING, P.E., P.C.,

                   LATEST REVISION DATED APRIL 12, 2006.

          5                     MR. CRONIN:     Good evening, Mr.

                   Chairman, members of the board.  Early this evening I

          6        gave to Mr. Kehoe the affidavit of mailings.  What we

                   are proposing as you indicated a 2 lot subdivision with

          7        a lot line adjustment of an approximate 3.5 acre parcel

                   in an R15 zone.  We currently have 3 tax lots with this

          8        property.  However, one of the lots is a little closer

                   to the wetland which is located to the west or to the

          9        right of the page and by this reconfiguration feel as

                   though we will have a development that will be much

         10        more environmentally sensitive in that it will take the

                   house and septic, or at least the septic, outside the

         11        wetland buffer.  In order to access the 2 lots proposed

                   plus the one existing lot to be rebuilt upon, we are

         12        proposing to develop Radzvilla Road consistent with the

                   requirements of Local Law 5 which is pavement,

         13        extension of the water main, including 2 hydrants, and

                   making that road 20 feet wide.  Any questions?

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Can you point out

                   where the wetland areas are for us?

         15                     MR. CRONIN:     On another map there's a

                   wetland, it's probably about where that dot is, and

         16        then there's the smaller intermittent stream which is

                   right here which I think in Mr. Jaehnig's report

         17        indicated that perhaps in one portion it had one inch

                   of water and in another portion it was dry and sparsely

         18        vegetated with some spice bush.  That wetland will

                   be -- I can't read the distance, I'd say 30 feet away

         19        from that intermittent drainage course.  There really

                   is no source for that.  From being out there it's a low

         20        spot between this little rise here and developed areas

                   and what we are proposing to build it just picks up

         21        primarily surface run off and snow melt.  The main

                   wetland is, as I pointed out, is over in this area here

         22        (indicating).

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  This is

         23        a public hearing.  Is there anyone that wishes to

                   comment on this application at this time?  Come on up

         24        to microphone.  For your record, your name and address.

                                MS. MARTIN:     My name is Cynthia Martin,

         25        I'm at 59 Dutch Street.  I am the only house along the
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          2        proposed Radzvilla Road which is approximately 350 feet

                   up on the left-hand side.  It's the only house that

          3        uses that road.  It is a gravel driveway approximately

                   8 feet wide.  I don't have a problem with the 3 houses

          4        going in at the end.  What my concern is the closeness

                   of Radzvilla Road to my house.  It's a 50-foot right of

          5        way that Radzvilla road -- it's only 8 feet wide, but

                   it's a 50-foot right of way.  We feel it is much too

          6        close to our house.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Tim, can you point

          7        out where her house is?

                                MR. CRONIN:     It's right on top of the

          8        road right here.  If it's okay with Mr. Vergano, we can

                   relocate our proposed road and shift it lower on the

          9        page of 6 or 8 feet or a distance Mr. Vergano approves.

                                MR. VERGANO:     How much distance is the

         10        proposed road to the neighbor's home to the existing

                   road?

         11                     MR. CRONIN:     Approximately?

                                MR. VERGANO:     Approximately 5 feet, 10

         12        feet?

                                MR. CRONIN:     3 or 4 feet perhaps.  We

         13        can shift that 3 or 4 feet.

                                MR. VERGANO:     I have no problem with

         14        that.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     The road will be no

         15        closer than it currently is.

                                MS. MARTIN:     Road is 2 feet from my

         16        steps.  It's my driveway.

                                MR. KLINE:     When you do all the

         17        widening you can do it from the bottom of it so it goes

                   away from her home.

         18                     MR. CRONIN:     The road proposed here is

                   the dotted line -- the road actually is close to this

         19        area here.  The dotted line and **pot of her **stops is

                   close to where the road is now.  It's not an exact

         20        straight line.  What we can do is shift the road down 6

                   or 8 feet and push it into this area here a little bit,

         21        but it can still be within the right of way.  There may

                   still be a little area here where you may have a 6 foot

         22        pull off.  The road is 20 feet wide for 3 houses,

                   certainly navigable.

         23                     MS. MARTIN:     It's not convenient for

                   safety of my children and pulling my car out of my

         24        driveway and just to give me some wiggle room.  I feel

                   everything is up against the house of the the existing

         25        driveway is less than 20-five feet from my garage and
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          2        the proposed road is exactly where that is, where I can

                   barely pull out without pulling out into the street.

          3        And to step off my steps and stepping right onto the

                   road.  I have 3 small children and I have concerns with

          4        that.  There is 50 feet to work with.  If you dropped

                   it down instead of being so close to the property line

          5        we can have the room away from my house.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     You are currently

          6        the only one that uses that house?

                                MS. MARTIN:     We are the only ones for

          7        15 years.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Who owns the property

          8        that the road the right of way is on?

                                MS. MARTIN:     My understanding is it's a

          9        shared interest with the people that access it.  So I

                   have solely maintained it and used it for 15 years.

         10                     MR. BERNARD:     So on your deed your

                   property line may be out at the center of that right of

         11        way?

                                MS. MARTIN:     There's a separate piece

         12        of paper that says we have a shared interest.  I've

                   called the town several times to have them clarify it

         13        and when they responded they said it's a shared from

                   the right of way.

         14                     MR. BERNARD:     Someone owns that

                   property.

         15                     MS. MARTIN:     The town says they don't

                   own it.  On my survey it is not on the survey.

         16                     MR. KLARL:     I'm not sure who owns the

                   underlying fee of the road, but several weeks ago I

         17        received some title information on this that shows the

                   people, Mr. Santucci owning the property, they have

         18        assured access from the public road to the property.

                   I'm not sure who owns the underlying fee, but he

         19        certainly had an insurable ingress/egress from the

                   public road to his property.

         20                     MR. KLINE:     He must also have the right

                   to widen and improve it, otherwise how is he going to

         21        do it.

                                MR. CRONIN:     There was information to

         22        showed that we have the right -- information was

                   submitted that showed we did have the right to ingress

         23        to that road.

                                MR. BERNARD:     How?  A right of way

         24        grants only a right of way.  It doesn't grant the

                   ability to put in a 4 lane highway should you care to

         25        do that to take your tractor-trailer to your house.
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          2                     MR. CRONON:     We are proposing a right

                   of way consistent with what the requirements of the

          3        town law.

                                MR. BERNARD:     That's what I'm trying to

          4        get to.  Is this a right of way, a town road?

                                MR. CRONIN:   It's not a town road.

          5                     MR. VERGANO:     It's not a town road.

                   What Tim was referring to was 1999 Local Law 5 was

          6        passed which establishes certain requirements for

                   nonpublic roads, whether it's a common driveway,

          7        whatever you want to call it, that access two houses, 3

                   houses an greater.  What you see is reflecting what is

          8        in that local what you 5.

                                MR. BERNARD:     I'm still lost in this.

          9                     MS. MARTIN:     I've been loss for 15

                   years discussing it with the town.

         10                     MR. KLINE:     There's nobody stepping

                   forward to claim that the applicant plans the right to

         11        make this improvement to that road.

                                MR. VERGANO:     We routinely ask title

         12        companies to clarify whether or not A, the application

                   has a right of access, B, whether or not the proposed

         13        access is allowed and then I believe Mr. Cronin had

                   mentioned it was sort of addressed by the title

         14        company.

                                MR. KLARL:     It was absolutely addressed

         15        by the title company to insure that they had insurable

                   access from the public road to the property as to the

         16        ability to prove, I don't recall the specific documents

                   in the title record and what is said in terms of road

         17        maintenance.  Oftentimes when we have houses on on

                   other than public roads there's a road maintenance

         18        agreement, an agreement, it's an agreement recorded in

                   the county clerk's office and tells everyone along the

         19        road what their rights and responsibilities are in

                   connection with the road.  When you plow, there's 4

         20        homeowners each month they have to pay a quarter, when

                   they pay each month they have to pay a quarter.  I

         21        don't believe a specific document here.  What I think I

                   do recall is the underlying documents go back some

         22        number of years, maybe into the '40s or '50s.  They

                   certainly have the ability to traverse from the public

         23        road to the property and we can look at what the rights

                   are.

         24                     MR. KLINE:     The subdivision plan says

                   existing dwelling that gets access under the same road

         25        under tax lot 22 now formally McManus.  There is it
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          2        nobody there?

                                MS. MARTIN:     There hasn't been anybody

          3        there.

                                MR. CRONIN:     There is a louse there and

          4        I believe there's a driveway cut through that.  I don't

                   believe it access that spot.

          5                     MS. MARTIN:     She has her own driveway

                   towards Albany Post Road.  She has built her own

          6        private roads which now has Jim Connolly property and

                   old McManus house.

          7                     MR. KLINE:     The old McManus road?

                                MS. MARTIN:     That's right.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else wishes

                   to comment on this application?  Any comments from the

          9        board?

                                MS. TODD:     I think one thing I'd like

         10        to see is definitely a homeowners agreement for this

                   woman and the lots that is detailed.  Living myself on

         11        a private road and not having anything in writing

                   sometimes make it difficult to decide how to divvy

         12        things up in terms of road maintenance.  The second

                   point is that I think that the residents that's within

         13        the buffer line should be axed.  I'm not going to

                   support that.  It's hard.  Looking at where all this

         14        drainage and west lands goes right down into the

                   property, the larger property that we have been looking

         15        at is as a board in terms of that berm so why

                   exacerbate drainage by having a big buffer impact with

         16        a house, that doesn't make any sense to me.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     I think it's fortunate

         17        get a differentiation on that lot.  It's shown as a

                   wetlands buffer, this is a drainage easement.  Could

         18        you speak to the difference between the drainage

                   easement versus the pre-existing wetlands?

         19                     MR. CRONIN:   We had a meeting with Mr.

                   Vergano on March 21st where he had existed a much

         20        larger drainage easement be included over this property

                   which be included over the main drainage channel on the

         21        right side of the property as well as the drainage of

                   course we are looking at at the one lot.  It is a

         22        drainage easement and it will allow the town to do

                   whatever may be necessary to keep the water flowing

         23        through there, but I suspect the town is -- what they

                   have done in the past 10 years is what we can expect

         24        them to have to do in the next 10 years.  Going back to

                   Mrs. Todd's comment that the application of that lot or

         25        house, if this were a vacant 3 and a half acre piece of
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          2        property I expect that that lot would not even be up

                   for consideration because it is in the wetland buffer.

          3        However, one thing that the board hasn't seen tonight

                   is the 3 lots that exist today's and two of those lots

          4        are well out of the wetland and well out of the wetland

                   buffer.  The third lot would be just about entirely

          5        within the wetland buffer.  If not entirely which would

                   be require the septic to be located in the wetland

          6        buffer.  Now, I'm not suggesting that that is something

                   we want to do and it's not something I want to try to

          7        have to obtain approvals from either the county or

                   town.  What we have here is what we think is a

          8        reasonable compromise to keep the 3 lots intact and

                   provide a development that is as environmentally

          9        sensitive as we can keeping the 3 lots there.  We had

                   rather go with this layout here, it gets the weapon 6

         10        out of the wetland buffer and one out  of the

                   wetland buffer which the original layout would have a

         11        house and septic in a wetland buffer.  I think this is

                   the best we can do considering that there  are 3

         12        lots here that exists here today.

                                MS. TODD:     I'd like to follow-up with

         13        that.  I see your point.  I also think that original

                   lot would probably not have gotten approval on it with

         14        a house on it even with the configuration that it is.

                                MR. CRONIN:     If this application is

         15        denied we will find that out.  I'd like to see that --

                   I think this is a reasonable alternative.  That lot

         16        that does exist in the back, it is a lot that does have

                   some understanding.

         17                     MR. BIANCHI:     I guess I'm confused.  I

                   don't like the fact that that house is totally within

         18        the wetlands buffer.  It is a different kind after

                   wetland.  I don't know how to treat it.  Do we consider

         19        it the same as regular wetlands?  Anything less than

                   that?

         20                     MR. VERGANO:     You have to look at the

                   ecological value of a wetland.  There's some wetlands

         21        that serve strictly for drainage conveyance.  We are

                   currently looking for the consultant's reports to see

         22        how this is categorized.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I only have Tim

         23        Miller's letter dated March 7th where he refers to the

                   report.  And he refers to the wetland as a generally

         24        dry channel a enveloped in a dense canopy of

                   multi-floral rose and having no tree canopy.

         25                    MR. CRONIN:     Attached to the original
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          2        planning board comments or staff comments which

                   included part one of the EIS, Mr. Jaehnig's report was

          3        attached.  I can read two excerpts from that regarding

                   this small wetland.  I quote, "Another smaller very

          4        gently sloped intermittent drainage course flows

                   northwesterly over a small valley floor across the

          5        northeastern portion of the site.  There's a narrow

                   corridor of swamp lands along the drainage course.  The

          6        drainage course is approximately two feet wide and less

                   than one feet deep.  There is approximately one inch of

          7        water flowing through the channel at this time.  Going

                   upslope towards the southeast the channel bed is wet

          8        but has no surface water flow at this time.  The

                   vegetative cover along the drainage course is sparse

          9        excepted for a few spice bush shrubs.  Some Jack in the

                   pulpit and trillium may be found.   It talks about the

         10        wetland functions.  "the smaller drainage course

                   provides minor storm water control function because of

         11        sloped and lack of any significant concave points.

                   There is a sparse vegetative cover and micro-topography

         12        along its smaller drainage course which are limits to

                   some extent the potential for any significant wildlife

         13        habitat opportunities for this section of wetlands."

                   That's the town's consultant saying as much as he can

         14        that that wetland has marginal value.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     I'm still uncomfortable

         15        with the fact that it's within a buffer.  I hear what

                   you are sayings though.

         16                     MR. CRONIN:     It's unfortunate.

                   Wetlands are wetlands, but it would be nice if we could

         17        classify A, B, C wetland as D.E.C. does water bodies.

                   This wetland here is much less significant than the

         18        one, main drainage courses along the east side or north

                   side of the property.  It's over to the right of the

         19        title block.  If this application is denied, we will go

                   back and pursue trying to get a permit on that lot

         20        which is actually closer to the more significant

                   wetland and it's not a slam dunk as Mrs. Todd has

         21        indicated.  It does have some issues, but certainly

                   it's worth pursuing.

         22                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Any other comments

                   from staff or the board?

         23                     MR. BERNARD:     Is there any possibility

                   of swapping the house over to where you have the septic

         24        area and putting the septic area over on the other

                   side?  I know you have to remove a rock knoll there.

         25        That's what you are going t set the house on.  Since
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          2        you are putting the house on the high part of that

                   property, does that mean that that house is going to

          3        have a walk out basement and which so, on the backside,

                   towards that wetland?

          4                     MR. CRONIN:     The way it looks now the

                   house will have a walk out basement to the rear.

          5                     MR. BERNARD:     It's oath 30 feet from

                   that drainage channel to the wetland channel where the

          6        spice bushes are and trillium are which are wet planned

                   plants and so if you are walking out that basement or

          7        that lower level and you are 30 feet away from that,

                   what are you supposed to be putting there, are you

          8        going to plant grass out there, a barbecue out there?

                                MR. CRONIN:     They may have 15 or 20

          9        feet of grass area.

                                MR. BERNARD:     This marginal as you

         10        phrase it --

                                MR. CRONIN:     Not me, Mr. Jaehnig, Paul

         11        Jaehnig.

                                MR. BERNARD:     I hope there's not too

         12        much traffic in the wetland.  You get my point, it's

                   certainly not going to remain even a marginal wetland

         13        at that point.  The character of it is going to be

                   different.  People say that's not really meaningful,

         14        but that's another finger, another initial part of the

                   whole wetland which feeds into a much, much larger

         15        wetland at the bottom of this steep slope these houses

                   are perched on and into a pretty massive wetland.

         16        How many acres is that wetland below?

                                MR. CRONIN:     12 acres perhaps.  It's

         17        pretty significant.

                                MR. BERNARD:     It's degraded greatly by

         18        virtue of the fact that it carries so much rapid

                   drainage that it's under a that's under another

         19        application to try to control that from the people

                   down slope of that.  I guess the point I'm trying to

         20        make is as we degrade these little finger leading into

                   more massive wetlands you are certainly going to

         21        degrade the entire quality of the final larger wetlands

                   and might as well pave those over too and they will

         22        become marginal?

                                MR. CRONIN:     You are making some pretty

         23        significant jumps.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Not really.  I can look

         24        around and see that's exactly the course.  What else do

                   you do.  You either have them or you don't have them.

         25        If you don't want them, that is one thing.  Putting the
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          2        walk out basement 30 feet from the wetland is going to

                   preclude a wetland in that location unless you have

          3        some major I can that I'm not aware of.  What I was

                   asking is, and I'm not trying to how to build your

          4        house or where even, it's just logic dictates to me

                   that maybe it might be better to relocates the house

          5        further up towards the road and if you've got room for

                   your septic system I understand that that is physically

          6        a problem for you.

                                MR. CRONIN:     The septic as you

          7        indicated that, is a knoll that likely does not have

                   much ground and also slopes.  Then you are actually

          8        introducing a septic within the buffer, so a house

                   which is -- once it's built is done, is not going to

          9        generate any pollution whereas the septic system you

                   will be introducing nutrients and likely phosphorous

         10        into the groundwater which the closely you are --

                                MR. BERNARD:     Heaven forbid.  You know

         11        Westchester County would never approve anything like

                   that.

         12                     MR. CRONIN:     Probably not.  The slopes

                   and the rock just I think make the location of where we

         13        are showing the septic now a better location.

                                MR. BERNARD:     I'm more concerned with

         14        the nature of people when they live in a house and it

                   being 30 feet away from that wetland I don't understand

         15        how the living space outside is going to work that way.

                   Just an opinion.

         16                     MR. CRONIN:     We can incorporate some

                   appropriate erosion controls and possible some wetland

         17        enhancement downstream where in a basement would be.

                   It seems on blah, what Mr. Jaehnig says is the area we

         18        are proposing the house is likely there was no water

                   flow and it was just the bed was wet and the sparse

         19        vegetative cover.  Perhaps it's best to -- that's what

                   nature did.  Perhaps it's best to enhance what is

         20        located below that location and allow beam to live in

                   this house or anticipating how people will live to some

         21        extent and do some enhancement down stream.  That may

                   ultimately --

         22                     MR. BERNARD:     Does there have to be a

                   water flow for there to be a wetland?

         23                     MR. CRONIN:     No.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Does there have to be a

         24        water flow for half the year to be a wetland?

                                MR. CRONIN:     I don't think there's

         25        water.
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          2                     MR. BERNARD:     Just interested in how

                   you phrase it.

          3                     MR. CRONIN:     I'm reading from your

                   consultant's report.

          4                     MR. BERNARD:     I understand that.

                   Putting the emphasis on --

          5                     MR. CRONIN:     I'm talking about the

                   significance of the wetland, that's what I'm bringing

          6        up.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Is it significant?

          7                     MR. CRONIN:     From Mr. Jaehnig's report,

                   talking about the wetlands function.  There's a sparse

          8        vegetative cover and little micro-biology along the

                   smaller drainage course which limits to some extent the

          9        potential for any significant wildlife habitat

                   opportunities in this section of the wetlands."  I'm

         10        not an expert.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Wild habitat.  We were

         11        talking about wetlands and whether or not it's

                   significant at all as a wetland.

         12                     MR. CRONIN:     This is understanding his

                   discussion of wetlands functions.  That's what he said.

         13        And he talks about the vegetation being sparse.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Vegetation being sparse

         14        and vegetation being --

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     John, he does say

         15        the smaller drainage course provides minor storm water

                   control function because of sloped and lack of any

         16        significant concave points.  That's what he says in his

                   report.

         17                     MR. VERGANO:     We could refer this back

                   to the wetland consultant with this improvement plan

         18        and ask him in his opinion how this improvement plan

                   improvements this wets land.  He did the evaluations.

         19        Many time the evaluations is done without looking at

                   the proposed site plan.

         20                     MR. BERNARD:     I would appreciate that.

                                MR. KLINE:     I think that should be done

         21        with any request for suggestions.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     That sounds like a

         22        compromise.

                                MR. KLINE:     What's the minimum number

         23        of homes that triggers of the requirements for a

                   roadway?  Under local law number 5.

         24                     MR. VERGANO:     It's the width of the

                   roadway.  If there's two lots that surface -- the way

         25        local law 5 is written now the road way has to be
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          2        eighteen feet wide with pretty much a driveway type

                   section that's about 6 inches of like an item 4 and 3

          3        inches of asphalt on top of that.  If it's more than 2

                   homes, 3 or more, it has to be 20 feet wide with pretty

          4        much a road spec cross section.

                                MR. KLINE:     I'm a little concerned if

          5        we don't reach some accord here we are going to see a

                   series of separate applications because they have

          6        separate lots under separate ownership which I suspect

                   was done deliberately.  I'm not saying there's

          7        anything wrong with that, they are allowed to do it,

                   but we may face worse consequence if you have to deal

          8        with separate applications from separate owners here

                   that if this board can release this as one application.

          9                     MS. TODD:     They would still be subject

                   to local lieu number 5.

         10                     MR. VERGANO:     The way local law 5 is

                   written it talks about potential development.

         11                     MR. KLINE:     I'm talking in terms of

                   with the wetlands.  Do you want to keep this hearing

         12        open?

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Let's just adjourn

         13        the hearing to the next meeting.

                                MR. KLARL:     June 6th.

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     And instruct staff.

                                MR. KLINE:     If staff would refer this

         15        back to our wetland consultant for any suggestions on

                   the placement of that house, the impact it may have on

         16        the wetland.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         17                     MS. TODD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question?

         18        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         19                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Next

                   month.

         20                     MR. KLARL:     June 6th.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Our next public

         21        hearing is a new public hearing.  APPLICATION OF ANGEL

                   & MARIA MARTINEZ FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR A 3

         22        LOT MAJOR SUBDIVISION AND A WETLAND PERMIT FOR A 3.82

                   ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF

         23        LOCUST AVENUE APPROXIMATELY 500 FEET SOUTH OF OREGON

                   ROAD AS SHOWN ON A 2 PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED

         24        "PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN FOR ANGEL & MARIA

                   MARTINEZ" PREPARED BY TIMOTHY L. CRONIN, III, P.E.,

         25        LATEST REVISION DATED MARCH 24, 2006.
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          2                     MR. CRONIN:     Good evening, Mr.

                   Chairman, members of the board.  Earlier this evening

          3        the affidavit of mailing was delivered to Mr. Kehoe.

                   We have had a few meetings with the town regarding this

          4        development based on comments made by the planning

                   board during earlier reviews and the plan has been

          5        revised to take into account what I think the comments

                   that the town had and comments that the planning board

          6        had.  And to summarize, this is a approximate 3.8 acre

                   parcel located in the R 20 zoning district and we are

          7        proposing 3 lots, one lot has an existing house on it

                   which is to remain in the lower right-hand corner of

          8        the site and the two new houses are located behind the

                   existing house.  There is a major significant drainage

          9        course and wetland area along the western approximate

                   third of the site which you can see the buffer shown

         10        and we are outside that buffer for well proposed

                   development.  The houses we are proposing here would be

         11        served via common drive to be constructed in accordance

                   with local law number 5 of 1999 and individual separate

         12        sewage disposal systems.  There was a letter from the

                   neighbor to the south, I believe Gerosa here indicating

         13        concerns about screening and a buffer.  What we have

                   done, our earlier application plans had houses here and

         14        here in this area and what we have done is shifted one

                   house from back up to along the site so it has a better

         15        fronting along Locust Avenue so we have a we have moved

                   the septic system so it's clear to the injury rose is a

         16        house and what we are showing for the septic systems

                   which looks to be the Poughkeepsie a dots here and here

         17        includes both the primary and stanchion area, so

                   imagine what would actually be developed to be

         18        approximately one half the area that are shown, so for

                   screening for this property here imagine say the

         19        septic -- the actual septic installed at this time

                   would be somewhere here, perhaps 40 or 50 feet away

         20        from the injury rose is a property line and perhaps the

                   lower half of that shape would also be the primary

         21        septic area.  So we have done it, I think as much as we

                   can to try to accommodate the concerns of the

         22        neighbors.  There is a significant number of trees

                   which we will be keeping there and for anyone who has

         23        been to the site this is where there's a – Mr. Martinez

                   has a nursery there where he produces Pachysandra

         24        It's an incredible site.  Once you get

                   past looking at the Pachysandra you can see how much

         25        screening is did going to be is there which we will
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          2        keep.  If necessary supplement with something, some

                   evergreens.  However, I want to make sure with what we

          3        plant I want to make sure there's enough sun for the

                   plant to live.  We have also received some letters from

          4        neighbors, one of which are is this house, Miss Meyer,

                   one of the concerns she has ask coming across Locust

          5        Avenue is a large culvert which goes under her driveway

                   way is here and it sort of breaks up and pipe has

          6        deteriorated significantly and it's just open channel

                   flow from this point on.  What Mr. Martinez is

          7        proposing here to facilitate any improvements that have

                   to take place for Mrs. Meyer is a 20 foot drainage

          8        easement which would allow the relocation of this

                   drainage culvert onto the Martinez property.  And at

          9        some points if this owner here comes in, further

                   discussions within had as to what improvements will

         10        take place on that property to allow this drainage to

                   go from the cemetery across locust down to the brook.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  Anybody

                   that wishes to comment on this application?  Please

         12        come on up.

                                MR. GEROSA:     Joe Gerosa, 282 Locust.

         13                     MS. GEROSA     Hi, I'm Kim Gerosa, 282

                   Locust.  I'm really nervous.  We are both really

         14        nervous to speak in public.  We tossed a coin and I

                   lost.  Please bear with me.  I made all these really

         15        nice packets for you with pictures that we are going to

                   be talking about and I'd like to hand them out after if

         16        that's okay.  First I'd like to say that this is to

                   nothing personal against the Martinez.  We expressed

         17        our concern before about development in the area.  We

                   moved to the area for the same reason we all moved to

         18        the area.  The roads have a nice charm and character to

                   them, yet we are so closed to the amenities that the

         19        Town of Cortlandt has to offer, shopping, dining,

                   etcetera.  We picked our particular house because it's

         20        really set far back from Locust.  We have a circular

                   driveway.  Beginning of the circle we are 215 feet back

         21        and we go back even further than that.  We are set

                   really far back and it's really private.  Over the last

         22        few years we have become concerned with the development

                   of Locust Avenue and how it affects the traffic on

         23        Locust.  To go in and out of your driveway, to get your

                   trash or mail you have cars whizzing by you.  It's

         24        dangerous.  We had a car flip in our neighbor's

                   driveway and I always think gosh, what if I was there

         25        getting my trash cans I could have been involved in the
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          2        accident because of the traffic.  Turning into your

                   drive people come up behind you, either they are not

          3        paying attention or they are just inpatient and you are

                   constantly getting beeped at for turning into your own

          4        driveway.  Traffic is a real concern of ours.  In

                   addition to that concern, we have specific concerns for

          5        this application.  Right now as it was mentioned as the

                   Martinez property is Pachysandra farm, a very large

          6        Pachysandra farm which is really nice to look at.  It

                   has been operating as a Pachysandra farm and he

          7        wants to continue that, but because of the property

                   size and the way it's configured, we have had no real

          8        issues with this business.  It's one parcel.  One

                   houses, it has limited vehicle access.  Currently

          9        vehicles can only travel so far on the property.

                   Business related items are stored in certain areas of

         10        the property.  It's not very accessible for anything

                   else.  Our concern is if you subdivide it we become

         11        more at risk.  At risk to exposure to commercial

                   vehicles.  At risk to exposure to the daily operation

         12        of the business including storage, employees and

                   traffic.  At risk for who knows what else goes on that

         13        we don't see because the property is so big that we

                   don't have exposure to it.  With regards to the

         14        commercial vehicles, there is a boxes truck that is

                   stored on the property currently and we don't even know

         15        if that meets the town requirements weight

                   requirements.  If you subdivide the property, each

         16        parcel can then have a commercial truck on it to help

                   run the business.  There's also been a larger yellow

         17        truck, like a pen ski rental truck.  I don't know what

                   it's there for, but it's there as early as 6:30 the

         18        other morning.  So if you subdivided this property we

                   will have more exposure to these types of vehicles and

         19        it's a concern of ours.  In the plans it was noted that

                   the applicants the applicant intends to run the

         20        business out of lots 2 and 3.  But at any time he could

                   incorporate lot 1 with that, so all 3 lots could be run

         21        with one business or if wants to start 2 other

                   different businesses he can do that with the nursery

         22        related business.  We are worried that one lot could be

                   used for storage, equipment, business related items,

         23        one lot could be used for employees.  This is another

                   requirement that we are not sure that the business

         24        meets.  We saw in the zoning that you can have more

                   than two nonresidential full-time employees.  One of

         25        these houses is allowed to be rented to employees.  Now
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          2        we have employees living on the premises so they meet

                   the requirements so you can have a full-fledged

          3        business here in a residential area.  We mentioned he

                   harvested Pachysandra and we would like to know how

          4        closes to the brook can that sack Sandra go?  Which are

                   very concerned what will happen to this potential

          5        nursery compound.  We are worried a precedent is

                   already set with how this property is run now but if

          6        you divide it into 3 different precedents that could be

                   set for 3 different nursery related businesses.  We

          7        have our quality at this of living to worry about, our

                   privacy and our property value to be concerned with.

          8        We hope the board takes is this concern very serious

                   will.  In the packet that I'm handing out, we are

          9        pictures of the vehicle, box truck and pens ski truck

                   that I have seen there recently.  Our 

         10        concerning is tree removal.  Currently there is a nice

                   blend of trees with a reasonable amount of coverage, in

         11        the winter it's sparse, but when in the summer when the

                   leaves are in bloom it's a nice amount of coverage.

         12        The gives of the trees work really together.  If

                   you remove even a few of the trees the area dissipates

         13        its charm and opens up to the other roads, Locust

                   and/or gone will become more open and other properties.

         14        To illustrate the tree courage in your packet, I've

                   given you a bird's he eye view.  I went on the internet

         15        acknowledged got aerial shots and I'd have our property

                   and the applicant's property and the trees and summer

         16        blooms, so you can see what kind of tree coverage we

                   are talking about.  Then to go further with that, we

         17        took that aerial shot and we made an overlay of the

                   proposed construction zone area so that you can see

         18        which is outlined with that dark black outlined that

                   all that area is going to be construction zoning so

         19        those trees are going to come down, because you have to

                   puts the septics in, you have to get the equipment on

         20        there, you are building the houses.  Also currently

                   there is pink ribbons tied to trees.  If someone can

         21        represent what those pink ribbon represented that would

                   be helpful to us.  We with would like to know if

         22        someone can estimate the approximate amount of trees

                   that going to come down land percentage might die from

         23        earth removal.  Our concerns for lot 2.  Currently the

                   house on lot 2 is caddy cornered so that the back of

         24        the property faces our properties and because our house

                   is set so far back it's our front yard.  We looks at

         25        the majority of the hopes on Locust Avenue and the
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          2        majority of the homes face front so the front of the

                   house faces Locust Avenue.  We also looked into zoning

          3        and zoning permits such items as RV's, mobile homes,

                   boats, equipment to be stored in the rear of the

          4        properties in an R 20 zoning which this is.  That means

                   that those types of items and because this is going to

          5        be operating as a business can be stored in the bark

                   yard which is our front yard, so we would just ask that

          6        that could be shifted to face the front.  We don't

                   really want it moved any closer, to keep it in the

          7        proposed limit of disturbance area.  Regarding lot 3, I

                   appreciate that they did move the house over.  We like

          8        the location of the new house.  It's wetter than where

                   it was because the two houses are closer, but we are

          9        concerned about where the proposed septic is.  If we

                   could have it moved up closer to the house we sympathy

         10        we could preserve some trees by doing that.  I have

                   some photographs when you look out it's in between my

         11        property there is two little sheds and that's right

                   where you will look out you will see these in the

         12        photos I have in your packet.  If the septic is to

                   remain, the board feels that where the septic should

         13        remain, we would like to know if whether it be pumped

                   up from the house.  Where the house is proposed it's

         14        down, so will the septic have to be hooked up or will

                   the property have to be graded and if so, how much

         15        grading and how will that grading effect us. ?  And

                   will there she a proposed erosion control barrier

         16        outlined for this area because we didn't see it noted

                   on the plans.  I'm almost done.  Debris.  We are

         17        concerned that there is silt debris located in the rear

                   of the property that slopes down towards the brook and

         18        I think it's the same debris mentioned at a previous

                   meeting by Miss Todd.  We don't think it's been

         19        completely removed.  On the plans it says it's been

                   completely removed as of July 31st.  I think some of it

         20        has been removed and it's within leveled, but there's

                   still debris that slopes counsel and I've got percent

         21        of this.  I'd like to know how this is going to be

                   cleaned up and what considerations will be taken into

         22        effect to make sure nothing happens to the brook while

                   this is being cleaned up.  If the property is

         23        subdivided, who maintains the future degree of

                   accumulation and what happens with that?  We noted from

         24        an 84 wetlands inspection report on this property that

                   that report suggested to create a naturally landscaped

         25        buffer and we wonder if this has been considered and
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          2        what that buffer will consist of and where it will be

                   located?  We do have an all the turn active to what we

          3        see now.  Our all turn active would be to see the 3 lot

                   subdivision down to a 2 lots subdivision, eliminating

          4        the house on lot 2 but keeping the septic there.  We

                   would like to maintain the look of Locust to have the

          5        house face front and rear of the property face the

                   rear -- rear of the house face the rear of the

          6        property.  We have included the modified version of the

                   plan which the plan eliminated some stuff and moved it

          7        around so you guys can see what we are talking about.

                   If the boards wants to go ahead with the 3 lots, we

          8        would like to ask the considered to consider having the

                   applicant putting up some privacy screening as Mr.

          9        Cronin has talked about.  He's mentioned it and no one

                   has come to us, we have asked for this and nothing has

         10        been presented to us.  Here is what we would like.  A

                   wood stockade and about 30 to 35 evergreens spaced 10

         11        feet apart approximate height of 6 to 7 feet along the

                   southern property line, I believe it is.  To conclude,

         12        we would really appreciate the board considering

                   taking -- we really appreciate the board taking into

         13        consideration the consequence of the subdivision

                   will have especially with regards to the business

         14        aspect.  And the debris that's accumulated.  The zoning

                   we have read is so vague that is that we are worried

         15        that the property will be subdivided and things will

                   start to incur that aren't addressed and the zoning

         16        will be hard too handle then.  Just to give one

                   example, currently the applicant has trays.  I'm not

         17        sure how many.  It could be thousands of trace dropped

                   off for his pachysandra business.  These trays area an

         18        eye sore to look at.  The <PREB>, the property is so

                   large and the way it's configured now, the trays

         19        <EBGTS> get the trays back near us so we can't really

                   see the trays.  We see them, but it's not the eye sore

         20        that it could be if you subdivided the property.  We

                   moved into a residential area, not a commercial area

         21        and I know technically this is not commercial, but it

                   is certainly different be your typical residential

         22        area.  He know he falls in under the zoning that the

                   town allows a greenhouse nursery or selling of

         23        agricultural products.  Before this subdivision is

                   grabbed, the operation after business such as this shall

         24        be more clearly defined in the zoning to protect

                   concern.  I thank the board for listening

         25        and putting their time into this and we appreciate the
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          2        opportunity to have our suggestions and concerns

                   considered before a decision is made.  Thank you.

          3                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else in the

                   audience wish to come up?

          4                     MR. FENDON:     Good evening.  My name is

                   William Fendon.  I live at 280 Locust.  My concern is

          5        traffic that goes up and down Locust is horrendous.

                   Any more drive ways or bigger drives ways to the

          6        problem that we have already is going to compound the

                   problem.  In fact, my driveway was the driveway that

          7        the car was turned upside down in.  Just last year my

                   wife was in a minor traffic accident with one of Mr.

          8        Martinez's tenants.  Just keep that in mind with the

                   safety aspect of people going up and down Locust

          9        Avenue.  Thank you.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else?

         10                     SIMBOLI:     Good evening.  I am Jarella

                   Simboli, I live at 24 Rancho Drive In view

         11        of all these buildings being built and some of them

                   being added tonight, I'm a little concerned about the

         12        traffic, the fire hydrants, septics, which I know that

                   the board will take care of those things as the town

         13        progresses, which is all right by me.  It shows that we

                   are being prosperous and that's important.  As far as

         14        the traffic goes, last year I got a letter from Mr. Joe

                   Hanson on 264 Locust Avenue.  He wanted to buy part of

         15        my property which abutted up against his property, rear

                   to rear.  He wanted to buy a part of my property so

         16        that he could extend his driveway from Locust Avenue

                   onto Rancho Drive.  I'm the last house on the right

         17        where the circle is and that's where the gentleman

                   wanted to extend his driveway.  He was very fearful

         18        with the traffic on Locust Avenue.  Of course what he

                   wanted would have disrupted our whole property and I

         19        just couldn't agree with it.  I agreed with him, myself

                   being an experienced tractor-trailer driver, when I

         20        pull out of Rancho Drive onto Locust Avenue I'm a

                   little concerned because Locust Avenue is on a hill and

         21        the traffic gets heavier I think it will be a

                   detriment.  That's one as expected.  Another one is the

         22        fire hydrants.  April 20th of this past month my shed

                   in the back of my house burned down.  I called 911 and

         23        volunteer fireman, Mohegan firemen responded

                   immediately.  While they pushed the hose to the fire

         24        hydrant on 31 Rancho Drive.  They hooked it up and they

                   proceeded to put the fire house.  Suddenly the water

         25        stopped.  When I asked them what the problem was the
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          2        fireman told me that the hydrant was malfunctioning so

                   they had to wait until they brought the -- it was in

          3        front of Mrs. Diletto's house, they transferred the

                   houses and the whole fire truck at the other property

          4        down further on 37 Rancho Drive and then they proceeded

                   to put the fire out.  Imagine if my house was on fire

          5        those 3 or 4 minutes would have been -- I don't have to

                   tell you what would have happened.  I'm concerned about

          6        that.  The irony is, in 1974 when, and this is all a

                   matter of record, there was a fire at the end of Rancho

          7        Drive belonging to Mr. Conklin.  The house burned down

                   in about -- I wasn't there, my wife and neighbors told

          8        me, the house burned down in a matter of minutes.  Why?

                   The same hydrant had rocks in it.  These rocks were

          9        sucked into the pump of the fire truck and destroyed

                   the pump, no water at all.  They all watched while the

         10        house burned to the ground.  About a year earlier a

                   house on Oregon road burned down for the same reason.

         11        Now, I wasn't there.  This is what I was told.  So it's

                   very important that, and this is 1974, the same hydrant

         12        in almost the same situation, only Mr. Conklin's house

                   was burned to the ground and my shed was burned.  But

         13        it's like a call to pay attention to what is going to

                   be, the more houses that you build, the more businesses

         14        that come in, not sure if the septics can handle it, if

                   a fire apparatus can handle it.  I'm sure you will dot

         15        right thing.  It's very important.  It's kind of a

                   scary situation.  I hope you keep that in mind.  As far

         16        as the septics, the thing that we have, wetlands in the

                   area, accept fiction, that's another thing you should

         17        be mindful of before you make any decisions.  Thank you

                   U.

         18                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else wish to

                   comment?

         19                     MS. RICCIA:     Rosily Riccia.  I live on

                   Frederick Street and I works on Oregon Road so I travel

         20        up and down Locust every day.  I'm just concerned about

                   the traffic because I do ride a motorcycle and there's

         21        constantly stopping and going because cars

                   are backing out fast, just a concerned for that,

         22        traffic on Locust Avenue that is wind did I and busy

                   enough, I think.

         23                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else?  Any

                   comments from the board?

         24                     MS. TODD:     I think at the works session

                   we talked about the fact we are creating a double

         25        flag lot, we did approve this, we wanted to get more of
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          2        a sense of what the lots around the property were like

                   in that area as we have done before.  This is

          3        appropriate.  I'd ask the planning department if they

                   could prepare a map for us.  I don't know what

          4        clarification we can get about the whole business

                   aspect of it.  I thought that was important.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Tim, is there

                   somewhere else you can tell what is going to happen on

          6        this property in terms of what is residential and what

                   is business?

          7                     MR. CRONIN:     This area here is a pretty

                   heavy stand of trees which we are not propose to go

          8        impact.  Do you have pachysandra in at that area where

                   the trees are?

          9                     MS. TODD:     Yes.

                                MR. CRONIN:     Pretty much all area of

         10        the property have the trays of pachysandra.  When the

                   site is development, I don't know what the intent is

         11        and if we are going to be building houses or if it may

                   be done as an investment.  Chances are until they

         12        decide or build they will probably keep the nursery

                   operation going.

         13                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     The plan is to get

                   approval, but building at some future date?

         14                     MR. CRONIN:     I think one house we

                   wanted to put now --

         15                     MR. MARTINEZ:     What we want to do is we

                   want to build our house in the back we are we are

         16        suffering the same problems that our neighbors are.  We

                   would like to have some privacy too.  The only reason

         17        we are trying to have the 3 lots, we have children and

                   eventually these will block to them.  Basically we are

         18        planning to have a house in the back and rest will stay

                   the way it is.  Eventually when they go older it will

         19        belong to them.  We raise pachysandra now and we will

                   keep doing it the way it is.

         20                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     There's an existing

                   house in the fronts?

         21                     SPEAKER FROM THE FLOOR:     Right.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     You build the house

         22        in the back and keep the business going on the entire

                   property as you have today, is that pretty much is it.

         23                     MR. MARTINEZ:     Those are our plans.

                                MR. CRONIN:     The driveway that access

         24        the site now, how close up -- how closes do you debt to

                   this property line?

         25                     MR. MARTINEZ:     We only come to this
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          2        point here.  With my commercial vehicle, yes.

                                MR. KLINE:     I have some concern about

          3        having a business ongoing along with a subdivision.

                   You have to choose whether you want to have a

          4        residential subdivision or run a business.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     I'm with you.

          5                     MR. KLINE:     I was going to ask, it

                   looks like from the plan that the driveway is in the

          6        wetland buffer.  Am I wrong?

                                MR. CRONIN:     The first portions of the

          7        site there is a drainage course on the east side of

                   Locust Avenue which gives us that first arc where the

          8        driveway enters into the site and then the drainage

                   course where the pipe breaks down on the mayor property

          9        or after the Meyer property there's an arc of the

                   wetland buffer that goes into the driveway before it

         10        hits the garage.

                                MR. KLINE:     Part of the driveway is in

         11        the buffer?

                                MR. CRONIN:     Correct.

         12                     MR. BERNARD:     Where is that?

                                MR. CRONIN:     On the east side of Locust

         13        here there's a stream.  There's a end wall and a stream

                   flows into that.  That hundred foot setback is like

         14        this.  There's the culvert here which for those who

                   remember visiting the site is in pretty bad shape and

         15        the setback from ---I think there's wetland flags that

                   come up here, that setback is here.  I believe at some

         16        point that the town is looking to relocate this pipe or

                   relocate this drainage under the driveway and because

         17        of the erosion that occurs?  This drainage course may

                   decide that it's most appropriate and beneficial to the

         18        major stream to pipe this all the way down to the

                   bottom.  That's something that would be decided later

         19        oven.

                                MS. TODD:     The septic system pump up?

         20                     MR. CRONIN:     For this lot, yes, it

                   would be.  The house is roughly 10 to twelve feet lower

         21        than the septic area.

                                MS. TODD:     The debris that's in the

         22        ravine, has that been cleared out?

                                MR. CRONIN:     It's under my impression

         23        that it was.  Mr. Martinez told me he took a lot of the

                   material out of there.  I think the debris that is

         24        there would --

                                MS. TODD:     It's not an easy job.

         25                     MR. CRONIN:     The material that is on
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          2        this slope, 70 percent.  How long do you think it's

                   been there for?

          3                     MR. MARTINEZ:     Decades.

                                MR. CRONIN:     At some point I would

          4        leave it up to the town's wetland inspector to decide

                   if it's bet tore take it out or leave it there.  It

          5        mayor be just decompose to the point where it may not

                   be with worth taking out.

          6                     MS. TODD:     I make a motion that we set

                   a site visit for this.  It's been almost a year since

          7        we were at the site.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

          8                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

          9        All in favor?

                                MR. VERGANO:     Tim, I think you should

         10        revise the he site plan to show a little bit more about

                   the future operation, how it will interface with the

         11        proposed development, notably where the pachysandra

                   operation or farm would be located and commercial

         12        vehicles, equipment and what have you.

                                MR. CRONIN:     That is certainly

         13        something we can could.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         14        All in favor.

                                (Board in Favor)

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?

                                MS. TODD:     I builds make a motion that

         16        we adjourn this public hearing to the next meeting.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         17                     MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

         18                     (Board in Favor)

                                SPEAKER FROM THE FLOOR:     Site

         19        inspection would be the 4th?

                          CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Yes.  I can't tell you

         20        what time.  Thank you.  Final public hearing.

                   APPLICATION AND FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

         21        DATED APRIL 4TH, 2006 SUBMITTED BY PETER PRAEGER OF

                   MOUNT AIRY ASSOCIATES FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL,

         22        WETLAND, STEEP SLOPE AND TREE REMOVAL PERMITS FOR A 10

                   LOT MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF 48 ACRES LOCATED AT THE END OF

         23        MCGUIRE LANE AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED "10 LOT

                   ALTERNATE LAKEVIEW ESTATES" OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE A 7

         24        LOT SUBDIVISION AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED "7 LOT

                   ALTERNATE, LAKEVIEW ESTATES" BOTH PREPARED BY RALPH G.

         25        MASTROMONACO, P.E., LATEST REVISIONS DATED JANUARY
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          2        27TH, 2006.  Mr. Steinmetz.

                                MR. STEINMETZ:    Good evening, Mr.

          3        Chairman, members of the board.  David Steinmetz from

                   the law firm of Zarin & Steinmetz.

          4                     MS. TODD:     Mr. Chairman, I would recuse

                   myself on this application.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you, Miss

                   Todd.

          6                     MR. STEINMETZ:    We are here together

                   with our development team.  We are here tonight to hear

          7        the comments from the public and members of the board

                   in connection with this application.  As you know, this

          8        application has been through a series of numerous

                   changes, reductions in impact, reductions in lot count,

          9        reduction in length of road and a variety of other

                   impacts throughout the deliberative process that we

         10        have been involved with you, the board and your

                   consultants.  We are here tonight as I understand it

         11        primarily with the 7 lot alternative plan which was the

                   subject of a discussion and creative special work

         12        session that we had with your board several months ago

                   with a lot of give and take and modifications as a

         13        result of your recommendations.  We look forward to

                   your comments.  We would anxiously await the closure of

         14        the public hearing and proceeding with the findings

                   statement.

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  Is there

                   anyone that wishes to comment on this application?  One

         16        at a time.

                                MR. YOUNG:     Good evening.  Andrew

         17        Young.  I live at 48 Pond Meadow Road which is directly

                   down stream from the proposed disturbance.  Mr.

         18        Chairman, members of the planning board, once again we

                   are asked to consider Lakeview Estates, a project with

         19        some really interesting numbers to consider.  Over

                   50,000 square feet of impervious surfaces, 34 acres of

         20        steep slopes, 13 acres of clear cutting, 4 storm water

                   detention basins, 3 wetland incursions, 2 storm water

         21        discharges onto steep slopes above wetlands, one heck

                   of a bad idea in my humble opinion.  Since we last

         22        considered this project at the DEIS stage, the

                   applicants have submitted a new 7 lot plan which I'm

         23        left to interpret as being their compromise plan.  And

                   yet, drainage and hydrology reports have not been

         24        updated for the 7 lot plan, so how are we supposed to

                   evaluate it?  Actually it turns out the applicants have

         25        made it pretty easy for us.  All you have to do is take
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          2        one good look at it to see that it is highly

                   problematic.  3 years ago were asked to come up with a

          3        plan that had no drainage basin in wetlands or wetland

                   buffers.  That created the expectation that this is

          4        what we would get.  Not so.  Some of you may remember

                   the photographs that I showed during the DEIS hearing

          5        of undocumented returning water courses leaving the

                   applicant's property.  Now, I fully expect the

          6        applicants to nitpick about the legal status of the

                   water courses, but what matters is that they can be

          7        seen there and carrying a significant large volume of

                   water after a large rain.  Those water courses have

          8        been subsequently verified and delineated by DEP.  In

                   fact, Mary Galasso of the DEP stated in a letter back

          9        in August that development at the site must proceed

                   under the assumption that the features are water

         10        courses.  8 months later the applicants are still

                   showing us a plan with drainage basin in 100 foot

         11        buffers of these wetlands.  My simple question is what

                   gives?  Will we ever see a plan with no disturbance to

         12        the wetland or wetlands buffers?  Either the applicants

                   have no intention of showing us a plan or it is

         13        impossible for not developing this site without

                   impacting the wetlands.  Either scenario is troubling.

         14        But what is truly disturbing is that no less than 4

                   storm water detention basins are required for just 7

         15        houses.  That says something significant with the

                   impracticability of developing this site and the

         16        applicant acknowledges that more basins may be

                   required.  Will it ultimately be 5, 6?  One basin per

         17        home?  That sounds attractive, doesn't it?  But

                   seriously, does this sound like smart development?

         18        These basins are designed to always retain some water.

                   I've read that abandoned swimming pools can churn out

         19        about 100,000 mosquitoes per week.  I just hope that

                   there's a vaccine for the West Nile Virus before this

         20        project is completed.  Apart from the basin, the

                   applicants maintains that the storm water run off will

         21        be managed by a myriad of curtain drains, dry wells,

                   infiltration trenches, riprap and French drains.  I

         22        don't know exactly what French drains are, but if they

                   are constructed anything like the terminal at the

         23        airport, we just might be in for a collapse.  Sorry,

                   that was intended comic relief.  Who are we expected to

         24        believe is going to maintain all of this riprap or

                   should I say riff-raff in perpetuity?  I'm sure the

         25        residents of McGuire Lane will be happy to reiterate
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          2        just how well their existing drainage systems are

                   maintained.  This infrastructure is combined with 7

          3        septic systems, 4 of which require curtain drains, 4 of

                   which need to be pumped uphill, 3 of which are uphill

          4        and several hundred feet from their homes, and 3 of

                   which experience groundwater at only 3 and a half feet.

          5        Can you imagine a homeowner keeping track of a curtain

                   drain that is over 400 feet from its house up a steep

          6        and narrow path?  I can't.  You look at all of this

                   engineering and you have to conclude that the risks

          7        associated with this project are well above average.

                   What exactly do we get for taking this risk besides 7

          8        large homes and an applicant that is able to make a

                   return on a bad investment?  We have to ask ourselves

          9        what is the chance that one of these 7 systems will

                   fail at some point in the future and what would the

         10        outcome of such a failure be?  Well, the land

                   surrounding the proposed site is not just any scrap of

         11        forest.  If the watershed for 3 different state

                   regulated wetlands, 2 of which flow into Colabaugh Pond

         12        and a third which empties directly into the Croton

                   Reservoir.  Disturbance at this site does not just

         13        remove trees, it has the potential of seriously

                   impacting water quality through erosion and polluted

         14        run off.  Does that sound like a risk that is worth

                   taking for the sake of the financial gain of one

         15        applicant?  Just what compromises are the applicants

                   asking the town to make to carry out this development?

         16        Well, steep slope and wetlands disturbance permits are

                   a given, but there's another one that is equally

         17        disturbing.  The town's master plan policy number 83

                   states cul-de-sacs should be no longer than 500 feet

         18        for safety reasons.  McGuire Lane is already 1,200 feet

                   long with a dangerously short site distance on one

         19        approach, the kind of thing that would hopefully never

                   be approved today.  The proposed 7 lot plan would add

         20        650 feet to McGuire Lane not to mention a shared

                   driveway of over 800 feet long, no emergency exit is

         21        proposed.  Now, the applicant's claim is that they can

                   improve site distance by cutting down trees.  But

         22        anyone that has sat in their car at the end of McGuire

                   Lane knows that it is the hill that prevents vision.

         23        Without a complete regrading of Mount Airy Road I don't

                   see how they can do it.  Are we supposed to have faith

         24        that the cleaning and servicing of a clogged storm

                   water drainage basin at the end of the McGuire

         25        extension will be possible in all weather conditions?
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          2        Are we supposed to believe that under no circumstances

                   whether such an event have negative consequences on

          3        down stream properties and water quality?  I don't

                   believe it for a second.  Now, I understand that

          4        sometimes the planning board may or wish to grant

                   exceptions to master plan policy 83.  Sometimes there

          5        may be projects that offer compelling reasons to allow

                   for cul-de-sacs longer than 500 feet.  If there is a

          6        single compelling reason why an exception shall be made

                   for a project that is as risky, maintenance intensive

          7        and environmentally unsound as this one I have yet to

                   hear it.  Do we make an exception just because the

          8        applicant has had a hard time or are we trying to

                   choose what is right for the town?  If approved are the

          9        members of the planning board willing to take full

                   responsibility for the potential consequence of this

         10        project, whether it be the impact on our water quality

                   or risk of driving each day which a dangerous outlet

         11        that has suddenly greater traffic?  I apologize if I

                   sound irritated.  It's hard not to be with a project

         12        that is so insulting to our common sense and

                   intelligence.  Lakeview Estates has been in development

         13        for eighteen years.  In that time the lot count has

                   dropped from 22 to 7.  That's a decrease of just under

         14        one lot per year.  The rate of decrease suggests that

                   if we just wait another 5 or 6 years we may finally get

         15        to see a realistic plan for developing this difficult

                   site.  Instead, I urge the planning board to consider

         16        an alternative.  A study that is cited by the master

                   plan by the Town of Cortlandt specifically describes

         17        this Colabaugh Pond watershed as a biodiversity hub.  A

                   survey by biologist Steve Coleman found that the

         18        Lakeview property was an important breeding ground for

                   forest birds.  This property which is a nightmare for

         19        developers and engineers could be a dream come true for

                   this town.  The benefits of preserving this land for

         20        open space and water quality would be tremendous and I

                   understand that the applicants have been offered twice

         21        the amount what they paid for the property to do just

                   that.  Isn't that the right thing to do?  I urge the

         22        members of the planning board to do something positive

                   for the town and to decisively vote no on Lakeview

         23        Estates.  Please put an end once and for all the for a

                   plan that is unsound and irresponsible.  Thank you.

         24                     MS. LAGUZA:     Good evening.  Betty

                   Laguza, 11, McGuire Lane.  I incidentally clean the

         25        drains.  This is dated October 15th, 2003, signed by
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          2        Steven Kessler.  It's potential large impact of subject

                   proposed action are as follows:  April 4th, 2006.

          3        Potential environmental impacts are exactly the same.

                   We have come 3 years, it's the same old wine in the

          4        same old bottle.  I'll just skip that and say that the

                   reason I came the first time is the exit.  It's ironic

          5        just two days ago my husband and I were exiting McGuire

                   Lane.  To the east up over where the vision is not so

          6        wonderful appeared a large vehicle.  Fortunately for us

                   we were able to gun the motor, that driver was able to

          7        slow a little and we escaped which surely would have

                   been a super-duper fender bender or perhaps a fatality.

          8        I only referred to this before as a possibility.  Now

                   I'm speaking as a person involved.  We have small

          9        children living at the end of McGuire Lane.  We have

                   drainage problem, my property is the lowest on the

         10        street so I can attest to the fact that it comes under

                   my garage -- pardon me, my driveway at the road

         11        entrance, takes a right, brings a driveway, through a

                   back into what was described to me when we bought the

         12        property as a stream.  It's really a ditch.  It flows

                   out under, guess I it's called Dream Lake, goes

         13        somewhere else, a canyon and I suppose into Colabaugh

                   Pond.  I haven't asked for anybody to come and do

         14        something about it.  I'm not concerned, I don't have

                   have small children and I am fenced in so that my

         15        neighbors children won't be bored by that, but when

                   this ditch overflows, there is a large pond or small

         16        lake, however you define it, which fills again in my

                   backyard.  I have some ducks that fly in once in

         17        awhile, I'm not too keen with that either, but we do

                   have significant problems now which we are trying to

         18        take care of and trying to live as good neighbors, and

                   I agree with the former speaker, do we have to submit

         19        to Mr. Praeger who has made an investment, I would

                   suggest it may not be the best one, and as I said

         20        before, Mr. Praeger, cut your losses and get out.

                   Thank you.

         21                     MR. SMITH:     Christopher Smith, 35 Pond

                   Meadow Road.  I have a letter I'd like to submit to

         22        staff.  I'm not a fan of rhetoric and I think the

                   issues are well-known.  I'll cut to the chase.  I live

         23        in the northeastern point the parcel impacted by the

                   proposal.  Thanks to the applicant for the

         24        consideration and comments and bringing the proposed

                   ranch basins away from my house out of the wetlands and

         25        into the wetland buffer.  The area known locally as
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          2        Torment Hill.  The name is appropriate considering the

                   number of versions the applicant has submitted in an

          3        attempt to find a plan acceptable to the board.

                   Despite the best evidence, the plan has serious issues

          4        as follows:  The length of the cul-de-sac when added to

                   the existing 1,200 foot cul-de-sac at McGuire Lane

          5        results in a 3,000 foot dead end to be maintained by

                   the town.  The revised 6 lot plan reduce to 650 feet.

          6        Either way the project adds onto the existing 1,200

                   foot cul-de-sac which exceeds the town maximum 500

          7        feet.  Steep slopes in response to a question by Mr.

                   Kessler:  FEIS tables showing acreage of slope

          8        disturbance for each of the lots by slope category.

                   The letter includes a summary not by acreage, but by

          9        percentage of disturbed area.  For both the 10 and 7

                   lot plan the table shows 65 percent of disturbed area

         10        is on slopes 50 percent or greater.  This is hardly

                   given the fact for the entire site 72

         11        percent of the site is on slopes 50 percent or greater.

                   It shows a clear majority of the disturbed area

         12        constitutes a steep slope.  No matter what alternatives

                   are proposed, there's no getting around the fact that

         13        the site is a steep slope.  The bottom line is that

                   area does not lend itself to residential

         14        development particularly when the drainage of this area

                   drains directly into a watershed which is the drinking

         15        water for New York City.  Finally, gravel maintenance

                   roads, some of the plans shows several hundred foot

         16        gravel maintenance road leading to a drainage basin in

                   the lower portions of the hill on the east side of the

         17        property.  This road becomes the maintenance parts of

                   the town, traverse a steep hill and crossing the path

         18        of one of the so-called unverified intermittent water

                   courses.  Again, my concern is the gravel road becomes

         19        a wash out or blocked by a fallen tree and becomes a

                   maintenance burden for the town.  To summarize, the

         20        proposed plan has serious issues and does not

                   constitute a responsible development plan of the Town

         21        of Cortlandt.  I respectfully ask the planning board to

                   deny this application.  Thank you.

         22                     MR. FITCH:     My name is Dominick Fitch.

                   I live at 182 West Mount Airy Road which is the corner

         23        of Dream Lake and West Mount Airy Road.  That lake that

                   the preceding lady was talking about is on a good part

         24        of my property and I can tell you that when it rains

                   hard I've seen that lake comes to a few yards to my

         25        neighbor's house and I knew -- I've been in that house
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          2        for 30 years and I knew people from my neighbors house

                   before and they said before McGuire Lane was built the

          3        backyard was a lawn and now we hear ducks in there.  A

                   few more yards and we will just get flooded so cutting

          4        trees doesn't seem like a good idea to the people below

                   McGuire Lane.  That's my main point.  Thank you.

          5                     MS. SPRATT:     I'm Elizabeth Spratt.  I'm

                   at 177 West Mount Airy Road which is across the street

          6        from Dominick Fitch.  My biggest concern is that the

                   wetlands are in that area.  This is in watershed

          7        property and the variance in steep slope that will have

                   to be required will affect all of our wells and septics

          8        in the entire area.  There are times when there are

                   wells that have gone dry and in adding more homes on

          9        this area it will impact on the property on this entire

                   area.

         10                     MR. STARR:     Good evening.  My name is

                   Andrew Starr.  I live at 15 McGuire Lane.  I'd like to

         11        thank the board for the opportunity to talk about this.

                   I'd also like to thank my predecessors for being so

         12        eloquent in the environmental impacts on this project.

                   I'd like to talk about the impact for my children who

         13        live on this street.  15 McGuire Lane is the last house

                   currently where the cul-de-sac is.  If anybody has ever

         14        been down the street they are probably aware that the

                   street is really not patrolled by any of the police

         15        departments.  It is under the jurisdiction of the state

                   police, not the Town of Cortlandt, so if there are any

         16        emergencies, the response time for any issues that

                   happen on the street is minimum 15 to 20 minutes,

         17        that's a long time if you need to have any sort of

                   emergency service.  Secondly, there are some water

         18        issues as far as what the wells are able to accommodate

                   in the area.  In the summertime we are at challenged 4

         19        showers and a little wash, that's about all the water

                   we can handle at the present time.  If this project

         20        goes through will the town be willing to run its water

                   line down the street?  I'd like to have you guys

         21        consider that when you are evaluating this project.

                   Thank you.

         22                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else in the

                   audience wish to comment?

         23                     MS. SWAIN:     Ann Swain, Saw Mill River

                   Audubon.  We are a local environmental group.  We are

         24        also a land owner in the Town of Cortlandt with our

                   protection of Brinton Brook Graff Sanctuary.  We also

         25        recognize that we are coming in very late on the game
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          2        here so we are not intending to pile on or anything

                   like that.  Our attention to this project was drawn to

          3        the documented statements in the FEIS regarding the

                   value of this parcel as a biodiversity hub.  We wanted

          4        to add from our perspective some brief comments on the

                   value of this property for wildlife and then from our

          5        experience we have been reviewing and looking at

                   development in Northern Westchester as an organization

          6        for more than 53 years, so just some very brief

                   thoughts and comments on how this proposal compares, if

          7        you will.  We really appreciate the breeding bird

                   census that was undertaken by Steven Coleman.  This is

          8        clearly a significant property for forest interior

                   nesters.  That sounds like a pretty small thing when

          9        you stack it up on a lot of other more important

                   environmental issues, but over the last couple of

         10        decades what scientists have realized is that the birds

                   that need large tracks of forest are also the very same

         11        birds that keep our suburban forests alive.  A parcel

                   like this that has ungrown canopy supports the kind of

         12        birds that are important for the suburban forest in the

                   town.  I appreciate the comment earlier how one little

         13        wetland can connect to bigger wetlands.  One

                   significant wildlife habitat like this is part of a

         14        bigger piece of the environmental health of the Town of

                   Cortlandt, so it's just not an aesthetic value of this

         15        nice bird or that nice bird, it's part of a link.  We

                   wanted to confirm that those documented statements in

         16        the FEIS about the value of this property as a

                   biodiversity hub and as a significant wildlife corridor

         17        because that's very obvious to us looking from our

                   perspective too.  We note with regret that the

         18        applicant has apparently disregarded the impact of

                   forest fragmentation.  In responding to Steven

         19        Coleman's notes about the forests on this property

                   being fragmented, the applicant pointed to a figure in

         20        the study where a whole bunch of this property was in a

                   certain shade of green labeled undisturbed woodlands

         21        and we found that particularly unhelpful because those

                   same undisturbed woodlands are woodlands un-dissected by

         22        building lots, driveways, drainage fields, drainage

                   basin.  They are fragmented, they are smaller parcels.

         23        We affirm Steven Coleman's recommendation for tighter

                   clustering, and we recognize the challenge to cluster,

         24        but that's the only way to achieve that goal to avoid

                   fragmentation and other more well-known wildlife along

         25        with other problems here.  Along with Hudson

          1            PB 1-88 PETER PRAEGER OR MOUNT AIRY ASSOCIATES       35

          2        Riverkeeper, we note a contrast with even say the Arrow

                   Crest development.  They at least provided individual

          3        lot easements to protect the woodlands on the

                   individual lots outside of the disturbance zones.  As

          4        things stand, the applicant is proposing that these

                   undisturbed woodlands would be left without any future

          5        protection from individual lot owner decisions.  A

                   number of people have commented to your board about

          6        that.  Down the road even as you dealt with earlier

                   tonight individual lot owners coming before you, that

          7        will surely happen with this property, people want to

                   go expand their lawns and putting in different

          8        amenities.  Maybe the applicant provides for individual

                   easements on individual lots would be a bargaining chip

          9        later in the game and we recognize there is give and

                   take in negotiations, but our impression is that this

         10        is an extraordinarily challenging site for residential

                   development that has been needlessly complicated for

         11        more than a decade by applicants bringing forward a

                   proposal that are within the letter of the law in some

         12        cases, but they totally disregard the fact that this

                   property needs special provisions, common sense

         13        suggests that.  The applicant, as said by a previous

                   speaker, has made only a cursory attempt to document

         14        proposals.  Probably you notice this too in the FEIS.

                   When they rejected the 6 lot plan they said, "it's just

         15        not consistent with the applicant's development

                   objectives or investment backed expectations."  We

         16        appreciate the frank nature of this statement.

                   However, in this FEIS the applicant's objectives and

         17        perspectives and in terms of investment are poorly

                   balanced against the environmental balances of this

         18        property and has said that the community risk from

                   unwise investment.  So from our perspective we regret

         19        to say, but the applicant could have approached this

                   property with an up front recognition of his challenges

         20        and then could have offered some environmentally

                   sophisticated proposal to offset those challenges, but

         21        they apparently chose not to.  That's from our

                   perspective.  We also note that the applicant makes

         22        numerous references to other area developments that

                   have occurred in wetland buffers, steep slopes with

         23        questionable septic systems with long cul-de-sacs.  We

                   all know that.  You all know that from your planning

         24        board, that happened.  Common sense suggests that past

                   planning mistakes don't justify future ones so we

         25        strongly urge the Town of Cortlandt Planning Board to
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          2        reject this proposal.  Thank you for your time.

                                MR. WEISS:     Good evening, I'm Jeff

          3        Weiss.  I live at 103 East Mount Airy Road.  The fact

                   that I'm on East Mount Airy Road might put me out of

          4        reach of this, but I heard tonight that a lot of

                   drainage issues lead up on Colabaugh Pond Road and a lot

          5        of my property happens to border on Colabaugh Pond.  What

                   I'd like to ask the board tonight is that perhaps you

          6        could require that information be sent about this

                   application and future hearings to anyone who borders,

          7        property owners that border Colabaugh Pond since that

                   water course will be impacted by drainage and run off

          8        from this proposed development, so I'd ask that in the

                   same way that neighboring property owners are notified

          9        of any planned subdivision or development or variance,

                   etcetera, that anybody on Colabaugh Pond be notified in

         10        the same way, future at least of this ongoing

                   application.  Thank you.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anybody else wish to

                   comment?  Any comments from the board or staff?  Just

         12        one question, Mr. Steinmetz.  To the extent that you

                   discussed it, I understand that there are conversations

         13        going on with the DEP regarding the property?

                                MR. STEINMETZ:    DEP has been back out to

         14        the site to take a look at the intermittent water

                   courses that they had initially identified at the site

         15        last summer.  There's been some adjustments to those.

                   They have scheduled another site visit and come back

         16        again probably next week to verify the water courses.

                   During a previous visit a week ago one of the water

         17        courses which they had flagged, probably has not

                   carried water in for some time.  Number 1, showed some

         18        signs of carrying additional water.  We believe it was

                   a result of frequent rain.

         19                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     To the extent of

                   their interest at this point it's just identifying the

         20        water courses?

                                MR. STEINMETZ:     Following up on

         21        identification of water courses whether or not they are

                   intermittent or regulated by the DEP.

         22                     MR. MILLER:     Good evening, Mr.

                   Chairman.  I want to make a couple comments on this

         23        project.  I certainly am respectful of the comments

                   made by the people in the neighborhood and I just would

         24        like to offer a little bit of perspective here.

                   McGuire Lane has been in existence for quite some time.

         25        It's a 1,200 foot long cul-de-sac approved by the
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          2        planning board.  The town emergency services department

                   has no records of there ever, an issue with the

          3        cul-de-sac on McGuire Lane, the road being blocked,

                   which I believe one of the reasons why this cul-de-sac

          4        length issue has been presented.  In fact, there's

                   never been an incident that the town has identified, in

          5        fact, where there has been a blockage of that.  The

                   site distance at the end of McGuire Lane has been

          6        identified and verified by your consultants to be

                   approvable to 200 to 250 feet.  There's been no record

          7        of accidents at the intersection of McGuire Lane and

                   Mount Airy Road.  The septic systems that are proposed

          8        here have all been reviewed by the Westchester County

                   Health Department.  I think there was a letter stating

          9        that they are all approvable.  The engineering done by

                   Mr. Mastromonaco's office for storm water basin, storm

         10        water management facilities have been reviewed by

                   Charles Sells, a competent engineer, they comply with

         11        Phase 2 regulations, comply with New York State D.E.C.

                   regulations and so everything done here has been done

         12        in accordance with the town and engineers and planner

                   have been relying upon for every project in the Town of

         13        Cortlandt.  I recognize that adding 6 homes on 48 acres

                   may not be popular, this is not a popularity contest,

         14        this is an application that has been designed to comply

                   with the rules and regulations that are in effect

         15        today.  It complies with your zoning regulations.

                   There's not much I can do or say about extending this

         16        road to 600, 650 feet.  The shape of the land is the

                   shape of the land.  I can put lipstick on that tape,

         17        but it's not going to change the way it looks.  One of

                   the commenters made a comment about the Arrow Crest and

         18        conservation easement.  Arrow Crest is a site that has

                   public water and sewer and the properties are half an

         19        acre in size.  We have lots in average of 8 acres in

                   size.  If you want to comment on apples to apples,

         20        drive up Arrow Crest.  Take a look at houses in a row,

                   it's 18 percent grade.  I've worked on Arrow Crest.

         21        Houses that are sandwiched into a very steep hill and

                   you take a look at this project and you will see what

         22        we have done is far superior to the Arrow Crest

                   application.  I don't know what else to say.  We do

         23        believe that we have done our very best to comply with

                   the regulations that are set forth for designing a

         24        project of this nature.  And we would ask that you

                   close the public hearing and move this forward.  Thank

         25        you.
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          2                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  Comments

                   from the board?

          3                     MR. BIANCHI:     I have provided comments

                   to the EIS.  My concern still exists.  I think some

          4        improvements have been made, some adjustments have been

                   made to resolve some of the issues.  We still have

          5        issues with the size of this project and specifically

                   with the lots that are 4 and 5 with a very, very long

          6        private road.  To me, that's a big, big safety issue

                   and with the convoluted route going up lot 3 which is

          7        also another safety issue.  We have heard the fact that

                   you can't get fire equipment to these houses if you

          8        need to.  That's an issue here.  I don't like that kind

                   of convoluted -- being a private road it doesn't meet

          9        town standards.  As far as I'm concerned it doesn't

                   have to meet town standards.  Then there's the issue of

         10        the water basin.  This project if it's passable or

                   approvable in any form it's not approvable in this

         11        format.  My concerns are lots, 3, 4 and 5.  I have real

                   issues with those.  I also will refer to the comment

         12        that one of the neighbors made where it sort of struck

                   me that a 6 lot plan is not consistent with the

         13        applicant's objective activities.  To me if it's not

                   consistent this is not consistent with mine and I think

         14        this should be re-looked at.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Any other comments?

         15                     MR. BERNARD:     I'll reiterate.  The

                   length of the road is a very big concern.  Especially

         16        at the end of McGuire Lane.  The videos we saw a year

                   or so ago on the visual problems with traffic exiting

         17        McGuire are real.  I've done it myself several times

                   just to see.  It's a very difficult road.  It probably

         18        should have never been approved the way it is.  That's

                   the existing status of it.  Adding to that length of

         19        dead end road is not a good idea.  The drainage in that

                   whole area of McGuire Lane is horrible.  Adding to

         20        those conditions with this application is certainly not

                   going to aid the problems that exist now.  The drainage

         21        on this application, on this acreage into those

                   wetlands I look at the drainage plan and I understand

         22        that in a perfect world it may actually work sometimes,

                   but it doesn't look to me like it really would work

         23        over time.  It doesn't look like it works, especially

                   when you are on that land and in the rainstorm I think

         24        one of our site visits was during a pretty good rain

                   and just after one or two days of rain and we all saw

         25        the additional drainage channels, we also saw video a
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          2        year ago or two years ago, during a rainstorm drainage

                   coming off this acreage and areas that weren't

          3        demarcated on this drainage plan.  I don't think that

                   those issues have been completely addressed.  I don't

          4        know if you have anything else to say.

                                MR. KLINE:     I would reiterate some of

          5        those same concerns and some of the specific points.  I

                   think I've eluded to these before.  Just to reiterate

          6        that the statements made were meeting the town's

                   ordinances here, I still don't believe that the 7 lot

          7        alternative really complies with the spirit or

                   intention of the underlying steep slope requirements.

          8        I think the amount of disturbance is greater than what

                   the codes says, you are supposed to have the minimum

          9        disturbance to allow a reasonable use of the property.

                   You still have over an acre of disturbances to the

         10        slopes that are greater than 30 percent and much of

                   that seems to be in other words, to get much of those 2

         11        houses in the back on the proposal and the codes that

                   we are responsible for apply says if you want to

         12        disturb any slope that is greater than 30 percent the

                   applicant has to demonstrate by clearly convincing

         13        evidence that the applicant's circumstances are

                   compelling and exceptional including any minimum

         14        demonstrating by clear and convincing evidence that no

                   reasonable use of the site, lot or parcel is possible

         15        without disturbances to a steep slope area of having a

                   grade 30 percent or greater.  I don't think you even

         16        come close.  I don't think you even attempted that

                   showing, I don't think you have attempted to make that

         17        showing nor have you come close from what we have

                   before us to making it.  I simply want some additional

         18        lots so you are trying to disturb more of the area over

                   30 percent.  It may well be in order to put one lot on

         19        this property you have to disturb a small amount on

                   that, but that will have to be an exceptional

         20        circumstance.  The 7 lot in my view does not constitute

                   it.  There are drainage problems that have been

         21        referred to.  I'm not sure why -- it seems that you are

                   still resisting the notion of a conservation easement

         22        what is really beyond a wetland area on the right,

                   northeast corner of the property, but if I'm reading

         23        correctly you still are not agreeing to any

                   conservation easements on the site.  I think it leaves

         24        it just that more vulnerable to additional clearly,

                   cutting or what have you, whether permitted or not

         25        permitted as technical matter and thereby would bring
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          2        me to the same conclusion that John reached, that over

                   time the drainage plan as well engineered won't work.

          3        This has a lot of the similarities of the Abby Rose

                   project that we had a year ago and our views were

          4        upheld by the court that heard the case.  I don't think

                   we have to assume that everything will go as perfectly

          5        planned, particularly when we are talking about impacts

                   on the watershed as could occur here.  I'm sure there

          6        is something that is approvable here.  I don't think

                   we have seen it yet with this 7 lot proposal.

          7                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     As you know, one of

                   our board members recused themselves from this

          8        application, two members are not here this evening.

                   I'm very interested, of course, to hear at this stage

          9        where they stand on this application.  We, of course,

                   can close the public hearing, but a clock then does

         10        tick on us and we have to have some action.  So we may

                   have to adjourn this unless there's some accommodations

         11        that you can make here.

                                MR. STEINMETZ:     Mr. Chairman, this is

         12        now I think the 4th or 5th public hearing in connection

                   with this application over the years.  As you know,

         13        there was no need to conduct a public hearing on the

                   FEIS and in accordance with SEQRA you are permitted to

         14        do so, although there is no requirement.  You opened

                   the public hearing.  You heard from the public.  We

         15        haven't heard anything significant from what we have

                   heard in the past.  From our standpoint we see no

         16        reason why the public hearing needs to be kept open.

                   But before any complication, I wanted to take a step

         17        back.  I'm a little troubled tonight, I don't know how

                   many months ago, Chris you might have the date, we

         18        convened at your board's urging a special work session

                   months and months ago.  We asked our clients to be

         19        physically present at that meeting because we knew it

                   would be long, we know it would be detailed and an

         20        opportunity to sit down and wrestle with these issues

                   in earnest.  We thought we did that.  We thought you did

         21        that.  We spent a long time that night discussing the

                   subdivision, discussing each of the issues that were

         22        articulated tonight.  We left, we didn't get that sense

                   having sat literally at a round table that you were

         23        doing that to us.  Our clients left that evening with

                   an understanding that they had worked with you, your

         24        board and your consultants to arrive at a fair

                   compromise as one speaker said.  We arrived at a 7 lot

         25        subdivision after paring it down and examining how to
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          2        reduce that road to 650 feet, how to eliminate some of

                   the trees into the wetland buffer, how to come up with

          3        an area that we could impose a conservation easement

                   on.  I have to tell you that I'm surprised to hear

          4        comments from the board members tonight because I

                   thought we had crossed that bridge and left it far

          5        behind us.  I feel that we have been led back around.

                   I've been before this board and I know all of you too

          6        well.  I'm not trying to make this personal.  I'm being

                   honest, I'm surprised.  I know my client is sitting

          7        here tonight and at least one of my clients is here and

                   he's certainly surprised.  This is not where we

          8        expected to be tonight.  I'm not surprised that the

                   public has concerns.  They are entitled to their

          9        concerns.  They are also entitled to know on the lots

                   on McGuire Lane there are no storm water basins.  Maybe

         10        that's why people on Mount Airy Road have problems on

                   Dream Lake.  Because unlike their subdivision, our

         11        subdivision has been fully engineered 3 times over.

                   Our subdivision has been approved by DEP, inside

         12        professionals, outside consultants.  I hope, Mr.

                   Chairman, after all of the years of processing this

         13        application we would finally get to the end line with a

                   product that we could both live with.  If we are going

         14        to hear the same old comments from your board tonight

                   without really clear direction, you are leaving us back

         15        to where we were before we sat down that night.  I

                   thought the whole purpose of having that work session

         16        was to conduct some meaningful exchanges and planning.

                   We don't get to do that a lot.  A lot of times we have

         17        to stand.  We all do our separate things.  We all try

                   to go through the SEQRA process.  It's meaningful for

         18        this board when we take the time, unroll the plan,

                   spend 2 hours going through it, subsequent to that we

         19        submitted the FEIS and answered the question and here

                   we are now.  I'm not trying to castigate you folks

         20        individually.  I'm trying to be honest with you every

                   time I come to this podium.

         21                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     David, I understand

                   what you are saying.  I don't think it is fair to think

         22        that because there is a work session that there still

                   cannot be concerns on the part of the board members.

         23        And what people have said here tonight, we believe the

                   applicant has worked collaboratively with this board to

         24        revise their plan in many respects.  It is from the

                   start a very difficult site and people are still

         25        reflecting that fact, that it is difficult and there
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          2        are still concerns.  I think Mr. Kline has said there

                   is something here that ia approvable, I believe that,

          3        and I am on the side that there is something approvable

                   here.  I'm not quite clear given my 3 colleagues, and

          4        unknown with the two colleagues who are not here

                   tonight, what that plan is at this point.  I can't tell

          5        you if it is as proposed or some other variation to

                   that plan, but I do believe in my mind again that there

          6        is something approvable here.  I just don't know if

                   everybody is at that point yet.  It has been a long

          7        process, and it's been a difficult one from all sides.

                                MR. STEINMETZ:    We appreciate the time

          8        you put in on that.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     There are issues

          9        that we struggle with.  You come to the town and ask

                   for a wetland and steep slope permit on this

         10        application and many other applications and you get to

                   the point, to use a term that is in vogue today, what

         11        is the tipping point?  At what point do you allow steep

                   slope permits to build your proposed application or any

         12        proposed application?  At what point do you not?  As

                   one of the speakers spoke this evening, is 69 percent

         13        the right point?  Is it 72 percent?  Is it 6 percent?

                   I don't know the answer.  Those are the things we

         14        struggle at.  There's a 500 foot limit.  We know that.

                   Should it be 500?  It's there.  We have to live with

         15        that.  There are many issues on other applications and

                   at what point do you agree to adhere and don't agree to

         16        it somewhere else because you establish precedence at

                   that point.  Those are the issues.  It's not -- yes,

         17        certainly you are here and you have an application

                   before us and I understand your right to come to this

         18        board and ask for some sort of approval, but we also

                   have to be mindful of the other issues that may arise

         19        by the decisions we make today.  It's not anything

                   against you, your applicant or the specific

         20        application.  It's just that there are -- these things

                   don't exist in the vacuum and they do reoccur time

         21        after time with other applications.  Maybe not all the

                   issues, but each issue does reoccur.

         22                     MR. STEINMETZ:     Steve, how are we going

                   to deal with it on this one?

         23                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     We as a board -- if

                   we close it and have more time to discuss this, and I

         24        realize that requires some action on your part, to give

                   us more time to do that.

         25                     MR. STEINMETZ:    Here is what I would
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          2        suggest as a proposal in response.  We are urging you

                   as a team on behalf of our clients to close the public

          3        hearing.  I understand that by closing the public

                   hearing you set certain time periods in motion and you

          4        don't want to be locked into acting precipitously.  We

                   don't want you to act precipitously.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I would think you

                   don't want us to act precipitously.

          6                     MR. STEINMETZ:    If you are going to look

                   to us to extend the time period for some duration, then

          7        I would ask that we close the public hearing and I

                   would like to set another work session where we can sit

          8        down.  For me to leave tonight and have the public

                   hearing closed and push out the time periods with no

          9        game plan in mind, I'm going back around the circle for

                   yet another year or 2.  I can't do that.  The

         10        constitution won't allow the client to sleep at night.

                   We have private property on the other side of the fence

         11        that we have to worry about.  Let's close the public

                   hearing.  Let's pick another control date to extend out

         12        to.  Let's pick another night to sit down.  If we are

                   at the final approach and you think we have something

         13        approvable and we are trying to avoid hearings, Ivan

                   tells us Abby Rose --

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I'm 1 ever 7.

                                MR. STEINMETZ:     1 of 6.

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you, you are

                   your correct.

         16                     MR. STEINMETZ:     We are counting.  To

                   leave tonight hearing Abby Rose thrown in our face is

         17        definitely not a productive way to leave so I hope we

                   can try to back off of that a notch and try to come up

         18        with a -- (interrupted)

                                MR. KLARL:     Just for the record, the

         19        board has tried to sit down and focus on the

                   application, with the applicant, my records reveal that

         20        on Tuesday, August 31st, 2004 we had a special planning

                   board meeting and that night the board was looking at

         21        another 10 lot on a 48 acre subdivision, so they were

                   saying 1 lot per 5 acres.  At the end of that meeting

         22        Chairman Kessler said you are now doing your FEIS on

                   the 10 lot plan and we would now like you to look at

         23        the DEIS alternatives of a lesser lot, 6 or 7.  That

                   was in August of '04.  Then we came back to another

         24        special meeting on Wednesday, July 27th, 2005.  At that

                   meeting you handed out the 7 lot plan having heard the

         25        board a year before and reduced the number of lots at
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          2        that point.  So I see my notes we have had at least two

                   special meetings where we tried to sit down with the

          3        applicant and I think the board and applicant agreed on

                   occasion progress was made sitting down that way.

          4                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I don't think we

                   have any difficulties doing that.

          5                     MR. BIANCHI:     I have a little bit of

                   difficulty.  I'll told you what I wanted right now.

          6        Give me 4 lots and I'll say I'll approve it.  That's

                   what I'm looking for you to propose, something less.

          7        For a project such as this hangs around the more things

                   change, more people's mind change.  That's what

          8        happened here since 1988.  It's a problem.  It's a very

                   difficult project.  I don't feel I want to be

          9        responsible for approving something that I know is not

                   good for the citizens of this town and for the town

         10        itself and the environment, so that is my take on it.

                                MR. KLINE:     I just want to respond to a

         11        couple things.  First of all, I don't remember any

                   member of the board telling you in words or substance

         12        that this 7 lot concept was something that was

                   something that we surely wanted to approve.  It's an

         13        improvement and no one is denying it's an improvement.

                   There's a big difference in being an improvement and

         14        something that the board is comfortable approving.

                   Since that time there are numerous statements in the

         15        comment letter that you should not be making clear that

                   you should not be assuming that the 7 lot proposal is

         16        something that the board finds acceptable and you have

                   chosen not to pursue the 6 lot even though -- I'm

         17        looking at comment letters from Ed and Ken that went to

                   you, that made clear we think that that should be an

         18        alternative to be considered, to have more before us

                   and you chose not to.  You take the chance that when

         19        you do that that the board will go from one particular

                   proposal that you are making.  I don't recall anyone

         20        saying that this definitely looks like something that

                   is approvable.  Part of the problem is it's not just a

         21        question of the exact number, it's a question of the

                   specific impacts that what you want will have.  For

         22        example, 7 lots to me as you have before us part of the

                   problem you are still having the two lots all the way

         23        in the back with all of the impacts that go with that.

                   Without knowing what are the slope impacts, how will

         24        the drainage work?  Just a number to me doesn't really

                   answer it anyway.  My reference to Abby Rose is not to

         25        throw down a gauntlet by any means.  Tim is suggesting
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          2        that this complies with zoning and thus you should

                   approve it or must approve it.  Of course if the mere

          3        fact that something complied with zoning meant it had

                   to be approved we wouldn't have a planning board

          4        because you can't even be here unless your plan

                   complies with zoning.  My point is that as the court

          5        remembers in Abee Rose, there are good reasons that

                   plans complied with zoning can be turned because of

          6        some of the impacts.  I think a lot of concerns have

                   been stated by members of this board and you have to

          7        decide how you want to deal with them.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Personally I don't have a

          8        problem closing the public hearing at this point based

                   on the fact that we have had over the year very good, I

          9        think, very complete public comment.  Tonight we heard

                   further comments.  I didn't hear anything particularly

         10        new.  I think we all understand the ground rules,

                   concerns that the public has.  So I don't have a

         11        problem with closing the public hearing at this point

                   and having another sit down and seeing where we can go.

         12                     MR. STEINMETZ:     Obviously to advance to

                   any next stage we have to get to a findings statement.

         13        For me the purpose to sit down and to look at the

                   subdivision map and figure out how you can get to a

         14        point where you can comfortably adopted a positive

                   findings.  We understand that.  I take it subsequent to

         15        your acceptance of the FEIS despite the fact SEQRA has

                   has time periods for preparation of a findings

         16        statement, I assume that nobody has started preparing a

                   findings statement.

         17                     MR. KLARL:     Unless the applicant has.

                                MR. STEINMETZ:     We wouldn't be so

         18        presumptuous as tonight has borne out.  With that

                   having been said, I think we can look at that as the

         19        two focal points for any sit down.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     My take is keep the

         20        public hearing open only because if this project is to

                   be approved it's going to be in a different form and I

         21        think that by keeping it open the public has more of an

                   opportunity to keep track of what is going on and to

         22        make comment and there's no time clock ticking also, so

                   I don't know about closing it, I'm just not 100 percent

         23        sure we should close it tonight.  Postponing it not

                   necessarily every month, but at a future point don't we

         24        have a right to open it again?

                                MR. KLARL:    If the board was of the mind

         25        to close, would you give a 4 month extension instead of
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          2        the usual 2 month, 62 days?  Instead of 62, make it

                   124.

          3                     MR. YOUNG:     Excuse me, gentleman, I'd

                   like to respond to something that Mr. Steinmetz said.

          4        It is true we are hearing a lot of the same things from

                   the public and in my opinion the reason for that is

          5        that the project and risks of the project have not

                   changed that significantly, at least since it was in

          6        its 10 lot incarnation.  Yet, they got out of the

                   wetlands which was a real problem, but there are also

          7        additional water courses and those water courses are

                   definitely in the path of their storm water management

          8        system and many of the other issues still do remain.  I

                   would respectfully request that since it seems that the

          9        plan doesn't sound very passable in its current form

                   and it may have through some more changes that the

         10        public may be allowed to comment on those additional

                   changes because we have no idea what kind of form the

         11        project may take or what other impacts we may see in

                   it, so it would be wonderful if we had the opportunity

         12        to express potential concerns over the new plan that we

                   had no idea what form it may take.

         13                     MR. STEINMETZ:     Mr. Chairman, we have

                   no objection to extending out 4 months.

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  My only

                   comment on this would be I can't imagine that a

         15        revision to the plan is going to do anything to

                   exacerbate anything that we currently see in it's

         16        current formulation.  I think if anything, it would be

                   mitigation to what we have seen.  While I'm a big

         17        proponent to public comment as most of you should know,

                   to the point of the applicant it's not often I agree

         18        with the applicant, this has been going on awhile.  We

                   have had multiple public hearings.  The question is we

         19        have an FEIS.  The question that has been asked and

                   have they been all answered in the FEIS and that's the

         20        point that we are at.  Whether you agree or disagree

                   they have answered this, do we, the board, think the

         21        responses have been complete in response to all those

                   periods of comment in those public hearings?  At this

         22        point I will leave it open to the board.  How do you

                   want to proceed?

         23                     MR. BIANCHI:     I'm in favor of keeping

                   it open and postpone a public hearing until 2 or 3

         24        months until we a see a more -- (interrupted)

                                MR. KLARL:     Do we have any affirmative

         25        actions?
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          2                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     There's no -- in the

                   absence of having 4 votes this thing would stay open.

          3                     MR. BIANCHI:     There's 4 of us here.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     No matter how we

          4        vote could have 4 votes.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Let's be clear on the

          5        record.  Is your granting the extension conditioned

                   upon the hearing closing?  If we were to keep the

          6        hearing open the time doesn't start to run.

                                MR. KLARL:     It's a 4 month clock

          7        instead of a 2 month clock.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     If that's Mr.

          8        Bianchi's position I respect that and there's nothing

                   we can do about that.

          9                     MR. STEINMETZ:     If that is where we

                   are, understandably so, we still want to try to sit

         10        down.  Mr. Bianchi was the one who told me my

                   suggestion was meaningless because we should go to a 4

         11        lot subdivision.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     I didn't mean to say

         12        meaningless.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     We would like to

         13        establish a meeting this month to do just as you

                   suggest.

         14                     MR. STEINMETZ:     Do you want to get back

                   to us or set that up now?

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     May 18th is what we

                   are thinking about, special work session of the

         16        planning board.  Here at 7:00.  Either here or in the

                   supervisor's conference room.  I guess we need a motion

         17        to do that.  We can vote on whether to close the public

                   hearing or leave it open.  With the split vote --

         18        (interrupted)

                                MR. KLINE:     When are we going to

         19        adjourn the hearing to, June or July?

                                MR. BERNARD:     One at a time?

         20                     MR. STEINMETZ:     At least do it to June.

                   If you are going to keep it open on a 3 to 1 situation

         21        and bring us back for whatever potential public hearing

                   in the future, 3 to 1, you can always pull us off the

         22        agenda.

                                MR. BERNARD:     Is it realistic if we

         23        have a work session May 18th and we discuss something,

                   are you going to be ready to have something to present

         24        at a public hearing?

                                MR. STEINMETZ:    The answer is probably

         25        not.  In the spirit of fairness if you are not going to
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          2        close the public hearing, set it down for June.

                                MR. BERNARD:     I'm concerned that

          3        neighbors will all come in here.  There's no way to

                   notify them that there's not a hearing.

          4                     MR. KLARL:     We will take a poll and put

                   it on the website.  We are adjourning from June to July

          5                     MR. STEINMETZ:     We will have from the

                   18th of May to the beginning June to find out what we

          6        decided.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Let's have a motion.

          7                     MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I move we

                   adjourn the public hearing to the June meeting and we

          8        schedule a public hearing on the 18th of May, 7:00.

                                MR. KLARL:     Special meeting.  Would be

          9        a special meeting, under old business.  It's a special

                   meeting, but it's a work session.

         10                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     It's not a public

                   hearing.

         11                     MR. KLARL:     The public can attend, but

                   there would be no testimony from them.

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I have a motion.

                   Second please?

         13                     MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         14        All in favor?

                                (Board in favor)

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Onto old

                   business.  APPLICATION OF DANIEL SADOFSKY FOR

         16        PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL AND A WETLAND PERMIT FOR A 2

                   LOT MINOR SUBDIVISION OF 2.4 ACRES FOR PROPERTY LOCATED

         17        ON THE WEST SIDE OF RICK LANE SOUTH OF CROMPOND ROAD AS

                   SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY 2 LOT

         18        SUBDIVISION FOR DANIEL & SUZANNE SADOFSKY" PREPARED BY

                   CRONIN ENGINEERING, P.E., P.C., LATEST REVISION DATED

         19        APRIL 21, 2006 (SEE PRIOR PB 33-91).  Mr. Bianchi?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Mr. Chairman, I'll move

         20        to schedule a public hearing in this case on our June

                   6th meeting and a site visit for June 4th.

         21                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Thank you.  Second

                   please?

         22                     MR. KLINE:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.  Do

         23        you want to make any comments?

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     No comments.  Let's

         24        make sure -- all in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         25                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  Next item
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          2        under old business.  APPLICATION OF LUIS & CARLA

                   FERREIRA FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR A 2 LOT

          3        MINOR SUBDIVISION OF A 2.7 ACRE PARCEL LOCATED ON THE

                   NORTH SIDE OF RED MILL ROAD, APPROXIMATELY 500 FEET

          4        WEST OF MACARTHUR BOULEVARD AS SHOWN ON A 3 PAGE SET OF

                   DRAWINGS ENTITLED "LUIS AND CARLA FERREIRA SUBDIVISION"

          5        PREPARED BY JOSEPH F. SULLIVAN, P.E., DATED FEBRUARY 2,

                   2006.  Good evening.  Mr. Kline?

          6                     MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I move we

                   refer this back to staff and set a site inspection for

          7        June 4th.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

          8                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

          9        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         10                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  We will

                   come and see the site on June 4th some time in the

         11        morning and once we do that we will probably move onto

                   schedule a public hearing at a later date, perhaps in

         12        July.  Next item under old business.  APPLICATION OF

                   FURNACE DOCK, INC. AND FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

         13        STATEMENT ENTITLED "FURNACE DOCK SUBDIVISION" PREPARED

                   BY TIM MILLER ASSOCIATES, INC. DATED MARCH 7TH, 2006

         14        FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL AND STEEP SLOPE, WETLAND

                   AND TREE REMOVAL PERMITS FOR AN 18-LOT CONVENTIONAL

         15        SUBDIVISION OF 42.43 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF

                   FURNACE DOCK ROAD, 1,500 FEET EAST OF ALBANY POST ROAD

         16        AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED "GRADING PLAN, 18-LOT

                   LAYOUT" PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E., LATEST

         17        REVISION DATED SEPTEMBER 28, 2005, OR IN THE

                   ALTERNATIVE A 16-LOT LOOP ROAD ALTERNATIVE AS SHOWN ON

         18        A DRAWING ENTITLED "16-LOT ALTERNATE LOOP ROAD PLAN"

                   PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E., LATEST

         19        REVISION DATED APRIL 10TH, 2006.

                                MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I am recused

         20        on this matter.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Noted.

         21                     MR. MILLER:     Mr. Chairman, we have a

                   final EIS on this application.  You have letters from

         22        the people in the neighborhood and fro interested

                   parties.  We modified this plan from what was the draft

         23        EIS.  We have a loop road.  We have now shown you a

                   16-lot alternative  We were wondering if it made sense

         24        to stakeout the loop road and take a walk so people can

                   get one final look at the way this is now configured in

         25        the field and something that is not really seen.  It
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          2        will be an opportunity to get back out there and take a

                   look around and an opportunity to talk a little bit

          3        about what may remain as an issue before we move into

                   findings.

          4                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     How about a modified

                   proposal?  How about we do that as well as set up one

          5        more special work session after the site visit to just

                   go through it?  Are we all right on that?

          6                     MR. BERNARD:     How about May 18th?

                                MR. MILLER:     Can we get out there

          7        before May 18th?

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Yes, I think we

          8        should do that.

                                MR. KLARL:     The work session, not a

          9        public hearing.  Just a board meeting.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     At any rate we

         10        should try to do the site visit before the 18th which

                   would be the weekend of whatever week that is.

         11                     MR. MILLER:     18th is a Wednesday so

                   Sunday would be the 14th.

         12                     MR. KLARL:     Mother's Day is the 14th.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     How about Saturday the

         13        13th?  We will try at that time.

                                MR. BERNARD:     What time?

         14                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     9:00 in the morning on

                   Saturday.

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     You will stakeout

                   the loop road and we will just revisit the wetland

         16        crossings?

                                MR. MILLER:     Yes.

         17                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Anything else you

                   people are interested in?

         18                     MR. MILLER:     How about locations.

                                MS. TODD:     I think we should say at the

         19        work session -- we talked a lot about leaving the house

                   out in the back of the property and not having the

         20        second wetland crossing.  Many of us felt more

                   comfortable with that.  It's something that we have

         21        been talking about in terms of having the clusters at

                   the front of the property, so I just want to put that

         22        into your ear so you can be thinking of.

                                MR. MILLER:     That's a bad thing to go

         23        into my ear.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     It just raises the

         24        ante for the site visit.

                                MS. TODD:     I make a motion that we have

         25        a site visit on Saturday the 13th at 9 a.m.
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          2                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MR. KLINE:     Second.

          3                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

          4                     (Board in Favor)

                                MR. KLARL:     Scheduled for a work

          5        session on the 18th.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I'm sorry, yes,

          6        thank you.  One more motion.

                                MR. BERNARD:     And also I make a motion

          7        that we have a work session on May 18th on this

                   project.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

          9                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

         10                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Last item

         11        under old business.  APPLICATION FOR THE HUDSON VALLEY

                   HOSPITAL CENTER FOR AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

         12        APPROVAL AND A SPECIAL PERMIT & WETLAND, STEEP SLOPE

                   AND TREE REMOVAL PERMITS FOR A PROPOSED BUILDING

         13        ADDITION OF 133,200 SQUARE FEET AND A 377 CAR PARKING

                   GARAGE LOCATED AT 1980 CROMPOND ROAD AS SHOWN A 6 PAGE

         14        SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "HUDSON VALLEY HOSPITAL

                   CENTER" PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E., LATEST

         15        REVISION DATED FEBRUARY 16TH, 2006 (SEE PRIOR PB'S

                   16-92, 32-95, 18-97, 4-01, 23-01, 25-01).  I believe a

         16        number of board members were at the site visit this

                   past weekend.  I was out of town unfortunately and

         17        could not make it.  I believe there are some comments

                   on the part of the board that they wish to make that

         18        they would like to see incorporated into the FEIS.

                                MS. TODD:     I think we were over near

         19        the Conklin apartments and looking at the buffers there

                   between the ring road and their apartment and I felt

         20        that the best kind of buffer that we could create would

                   be an earthened berm that went near the border of the

         21        property.  Here's a place where there is already

                   existing berms on either side and then it dips down

         22        into the lower area where the fence is that is kind of

                   falling apart and that's where you can continue the

         23        berm and you have to do some kind of work with --

                   there's a drainage channel there, but you can also plan

         24        on top of that and really create both a visual and

                   acoustical buffer.

         25                     MR. MILLER:     If we put a berm in we may
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          2        have to take out some of the trees.  You don't object

                   to that?

          3                     MS. TODD:     No.  No, because I think you

                   could plant terms on top of the berm up on the hill of

          4        the berm.

                                MR. MILLER:     We are happy to do that.

          5        I want the board to be aware that there are some large

                   mature trees out there, and they can G <WEBLGT> plant

          6        on top of the berm, but it's going to be a whole

                   different look and a whole different feel.  We are

          7        happy to pursue it, but I just wanted you to be aware

                   that you can't put a 4 foot, 5 foot, 6 foot high berm

          8        without a 2 on 1 slope.  It takes up a lot of space at

                   the foot.

          9                     MS. TODD:     I don't know exactly how

                   much space it would take up, but I'd like from you if

         10        that would work.

                                MR. MILLER:     Okay.

         11                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Our plan would be

                   prepared showing the buffers, showing the tree location

         12        and we can evaluate whether trees would have to stay or

                   go.  That's what we need to see.

         13                     MR. MILLER:     Okay.

                                MS. TODD:     The other thing that I

         14        talked ahead -- with the head of the hospital about was

                   the idea of board work through the wetland.  It would

         15        be a kind of a meditation air I did.

                                MR. MILLER:     We are agree to believe

         16        that.

                                MS. TODD:     I'd love to see some plans

         17        on that, some drawings.

                                MR. MILLER:     Is this televised?

         18                     MS. TODD:     Yes.

                                MR. MILLER:     We estimated the cost of

         19        that boardwalk at 50,000.  The hospital would love for

                   the public to make donations, we would put a plaque out

         20        there, ask for dollar donation and we could cover that

                   with the first 50 people.  I pledge the first thousand

         21        dollars.

                                MR. KLINE:     You have another volunteer

         22        in the back also.

                                MR. BIANCHI:    I had a suggestion too.

         23        Because of the incursions of the parking garage into

                   the wetlands buffer and you can't avoid that, I know

         24        you can't avoid that, I had suggested maybe trying to

                   swing or pivot the garage around the corner to the left

         25        over there.
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          2                     MR. MILLER:     We will go clockwise.

                                MR. BIANCHI:     To try to increase that

          3        space especially where the buffer makes a V in the

                   corner over there.

          4                     MR. MILLER:     We think that's an

                   interesting idea and we will take a look at that.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Have you guys taken

                   a look at the helipad and taken a look at that?

          6                     MR. MILLER:     Mr. Foley wasn't there,

                   but the helipad has been cited with the OFA so it does

          7        comply with clearance and things of that nature.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     That's right.

          8                     MR. MILLER:     We will get you a FEIS in

                   a couple weeks.

          9                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Do I need a motion

                   on this somewhere?

         10                     MR. BERNARD:     Mr. Chairman, I move we

                   refer this back to staff and wait for the FEIS.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor.

         13                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  Onto

         14        correspondence.   LETTER DATED MARCH 27TH, 2006 FROM

                   NANCY REINSTEIN REQUESTING PLANNING BOARD APPROVAL FOR

         15        A REVISED SIGN FOR THE RUGGED BOOT SHOE COMPANY LOCATED

                   ON ROUTE 6.  Mr. Bianchi?

         16                     MR. BIANCHI:     Mr. Chairman, I'll move

                   to approve the revised sign that was reviewed by the

         17        Architectural Advisory Council in which a recent letter

                   stated that they -- I have a letter here that says if

         18        they agree with the sign and approved it.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         19                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         20        All in favor.

                                (Board in Favor)

         21                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?   LETTER

                   DATED APRIL 7, 2006 FROM LOUIS CARUSO, PROJECT MANAGER

         22        REQUESTING PLANNING BOARD APPROVAL TO CHANGE BUILDING

                   NUMBER 10 CONTAINING 4 UNITS AT HOLLOW BROOK MEWS TOWN

         23        HOME PROJECT FROM A CONVENTIONAL SUBSURFACE BASEMENT TO

                   A WALK OUT BASEMENT LOCATED ON OREGON ROAD.  Mr. Kline?

         24                     MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I make a

                   motion to approve this request.

         25                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?
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          2                     MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

          3        Were there any other issues that we needed to have

                   addressed by this development?

          4                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     I'm not aware of any

                   other issues, no.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

          6                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Thank you.

                   LETTER DATED APRIL 12, 2006 FROM SUSAN FASNACHT

          7        REQUESTING THE FIRST, 6-MONTH TIME EXTENSION OF

                   PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR THE PAR SUBDIVISION

          8        LOCATED AT 145 TEATOWN ROAD.

                                MS. TODD:     Mr. Chairman, I make a

          9        motion that we approve resolution number 21-06 granting

                   the request.

         10                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  LETTER

                   DATED APRIL 13TH, 2006 FROM LINDA D. PUGLISI, TOWN

         13        SUPERVISOR FOR PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO ROUTE 6 AND TO

                   RENAME IT "CORTLANDT BOULEVARD."  Mr. Bernard?

         14                     MR. BERNARD:     Mr. Chairman, I move that

                   we receive and file.

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second please?

                                MS. TODD:     Second.

         16                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                                MR. BERNARD:     On the question, on the

         17        information that we received, some of the plan material

                   or trees that contribute a lot of fruit and bodies or

         18        different things like the Magnolia trees and trop

                   blossoms that are extremely slippery these are slated

         19        to be planted in traffic islands which may not be the

                   ideal plant material, there are some other trees that

         20        drop seed pods, they have similar problems with, so

                   just this may be good to review the planning materials.

         21                     MS. TODD:     There's also fantastic

                   planters on the west side of the highway down in

         22        Manhattan, they are just so rugged that they do really

                   well.  You might want to look down there to see what

         23        they have got planted in there.

                                MR. KLINE:     Are you talking about those

         24        stone planters?

                                MS. TODD:     Yes.

         25                     MR. BERNARD:     Those are prefabricated
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          2        stone section, they weren't laid by hand.  They came in

                   15-foot section.

          3                     MS. TODD:     I just think that's so good

                   looking, the west side highway rehab.

          4                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Next item is a --

                   did we vote on that?

          5                     MS. TODD:     No.  We are on the question.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

          6        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

          7                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  LETTER

                   DATED APRIL 20, 2006 FROM STEVEN MILLER REQUESTING THE

          8        SECOND, 6-MONTH TIME EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT

                   APPROVAL FOR THE LEVERICH MINOR SUBDIVISION LOT LINE

          9        ADJUSTMENT LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF MAPLE AVENUE

                   APPROXIMATELY 400 FEET EAST OF THE PEEKSKILL MUNICIPAL

         10        LINE.  Mr. Bianchi?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Mr. Chairman, I'll move

         11        to adopt resolution 22-06 which grants the second

                   planning extension.

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MS. TODD:     Second.

         13                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

         14                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  LETTER

         15        DATED APRIL 20, 2006 FROM MARY ANNE HARKINS, ESQ.

                   REQUESTING THE FIRST, 6-MONTH TIME EXTENSION OF

         16        PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR THE LARGE/LIPKIN MINOR

                   SUBDIVISION LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF CROTON PARK

         17        ROAD SOUTH OF ASH STREET.  Mr. Kline?

                                MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I move for

         18        the adoption of resolution 23-06 granting this request.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         19                     MS. TODD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         20        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         21                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  LETTER

                   DATED APRIL 21, 2006 FROM WILLIAM A. ZUTT, ESQ.,

         22        REQUESTING APPROVAL OF A TEMPORARY 60 FOOT BY 90 FOOT

                   TENT TO BE LOCATED ON MONTEVERDE RESTAURANT/HOTEL

         23        LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF BEAR MOUNTAIN BRIDGE ROAD.

                   Miss Todd?

         24                     MS. TODD:     I guess, before we get a

                   motion, we discussed this at the work session.  I

         25        believe staff is of the opinion, and there's no reason
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          2        to doubt them, that we need an amended site plan in

                   order to -- (interrupted)

          3                     MR. VERGANO:     That's if it's going to

                   be a permanent tent.

          4                     MR. ZUTT:     No, it's seasonal.

                                MR. VERGANO:     It's seasonal, but I

          5        believe it's supposed to be erected 5 or 6 months.

                                MR. ZUTT:     I have the owner here, if he

          6        could stand up, Richard Friedberg.  He purchased

                   Monteverde about a year ago.  We discussed this, Ed,

          7        and you said the way you wanted us to proceed was with

                   a letter application and a plan.

          8                     MR. VERGANO:     That's right.  It was

                   also discussed at our staff meeting that the tent would

          9        be removed at the end of whatever event the tent was

                   intended for during that period of course.

         10                     MR. ZUTT:     I don't believe that was the

                   discussion.  I believe we intended to leave it up for

         11        the season as I stated in my letter, is that right,

                   Richard?

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     May through October?

                                MR. ZUTT:     May through October, right.

         13        That was the description that we gave at the meeting.

                                MR. VERGANO:     That's not my

         14        recollection.  My recollection would be it would be

                   erected for an event, wedding or whatever, and then it

         15        would be removed.  That's what was discussed.

                                MR. ZUTT:     We have different

         16        recollections.  In any case we want to put up a tent.

                   If we are going to have to come in with a formal

         17        application we will lose the month of May and probably

                   the month of June and lose half the season right there.

         18                     MR. VERGANO:     How do you feel about

                   removing it after each event?

         19                     MR. ZUTT:     I don't know how much of a

                   hardship that might represent.  We are talking about

         20        portable kitchen, portable toilets and the facility

                   tent itself.

         21                     MR. KLINE:     How often do you anticipate

                   this being used?  I'm sure your client will answer

         22        this.  If this is something up from May to October you

                   just basically expanded your restaurant by 60 by 90

         23        tent which can seat a lot of people.  If somebody came

                   in with an application and said I want to enlarge our

         24        restaurant to accommodate another 200 people we want to

                   know where is the parking and so forth.

         25                     MR. ZUTT:     That is not the purpose of
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          2        the request.  This is strictly for catered functions

                   only.

          3                     MR. KLINE:     Right, but if it becomes

                   every Friday and Saturday night there's going to be 200

          4        people in there, we want to know how you're going to do

                   the parking and so forth.  60 by 90 is a pretty big

          5        tent.

                                MR. ZUTT:     Yes.  All the details were

          6        discussed with staff and we brought it in as letter

                   application with the understanding that that was

          7        sufficient procedurally.  I apologize if we

                   misunderstood.  Maybe Mr. Friedberg can step up and

          8        explain what his expectations are with respect to the

                   frequency with which he expects this tent to be

          9        utilized.

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     Good evening.  I want to

         10        thank you for letting us come before you this evening

                   to discuss this situation as far as the tent is

         11        concerned.  This has really been precipitated by the

                   public, people who have requested up at Monteverde for

         12        a larger facility for weddings and other function.  The

                   New York State Bar Association, and that was what

         13        precipitated the plan to erect this tent.  To make a

                   comment to what Ed is referring to, at that meeting

         14        which was approximately 2 weeks or 3 weeks ago, that

                   was something which was suggested as an interim basis

         15        that this tent would be erected and then taken down

                   over a period of time, until it took us time to file

         16        the proper application for a much longer stay, Mr.

                   Kline, which is really what we are looking for.  It

         17        really has to do with economics with not taking it

                   down.  As you know, you had or it was proffered to you

         18        plans for this tent.  We have no neighbors at

                   Monteverde as you know.  This is an area which is an

         19        area to the right of the restaurant.  The request was

                   to put it up for that duration, Mr. Kessler, from May

         20        through October, which was the period of time that this

                   could be used because there's not going to be any heat

         21        in this facility, Mr. Bernard, or anything of that type

                   which would allow us to keep it up for the winter

         22        months.  As far as taking it up and putting it down,

                   depending upon what that schedule was, if Mr. Vergano

         23        felt and his staff felt that we should presently do

                   that, certainly the type of person that I am I would

         24        adhere to his request, albeit we think it would be

                   financially -- certainly not devastating, but

         25        financially attainable to some degrees as far as people
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          2        renting the facility for their functions.  I don't know

                   how many of you have been up to Monteverde.  This is

          3        our one year anniversary, April 23rd.  This was a

                   situation which I purchased over a year ago, invested

          4        close to 3 and a half million dollars in refurbishing

                   this restaurant and I'm happy to be in town with you

          5        all.  I think I will be a very good citizen, a very

                   good neighbor and participant in public affairs here.

          6        This project is on 29 acres of land and this is

                   strictly another phase as far as where I am heading for

          7        the development of Monteverde, which I believe and so

                   many of you have been there and others have told me

          8        that this is really something and special for the

                   community.  Of course I'd love to meet with you at a

          9        later date and discuss with you the overall plans for

                   the property which some people think is ambitious, but

         10        I think is just perfect for that property, the highest

                   and best use, and for the community.  Getting back to

         11        the situation at hand, you and I did have a little

                   dialogue about on an interim basis, erecting the tent,

         12        taking it down.  As you know the thrust of the overall

                   meeting was to discuss leaving this tent up so we

         13        wouldn't have the burden of putting it up and taking it

                   down which is the request before you this evening.  As

         14        far as the plans for parking, Mr. Kline, that's all

                   been laid out.  I believe you people all have site

         15        plans for that submitted probably about a year and a

                   half ago -- with the letter in April.

         16                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     April 21st.

                                MR. VERGANO:     How do you plan on using

         17        the tent?  Refresh my memory.

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     This was for much larger

         18        events, Mr. Vergano, than what we have present capacity

                   for in the facility.  In other words, we are getting a

         19        great many requests for larger weddings as an example.

                   We can hold up to 180 comfortably, but we are talking

         20        about 300.  The State Bar Association is looking at a

                   facility from 300 which this tent will seat 300 members

         21        for a convention.  A number of situations, Mr. Kessler,

                   this town bringing in very important people to

         22        Cortlandt to see Cortlandt through these kind of

                   events.  We are talking about everyone from the U.N.

         23        right on through certainly things that you will be

                   hearing about.  These are all for this type of

         24        facility.  You also have the restaurant and hotel

                   operating has it has for many, many years.

         25                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Are there any fire
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          2        department issues for the tent that need to be

                   reviewed?

          3                     MR. VERGANO:     Of course, there are.

                                MR. KLARL:     We did this review for the

          4        tent, the church not far from there.  We looked at the

                   fire department, the parking and they were using the

          5        microphones on the tent, we looked at the hours of

                   operation for the tent for the church.

          6                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     The church is in a

                   neighboring area.

          7                     MR. KLARL:     We had neighbors concerned

                   with the noise spread from the tent.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     How do we proceed

                   here?

          9                     MR. VERGANO:     I guess with the access

                   to this temporary parking area would be blocked during

         10        these times that you don't have these special catered

                   events?

         11                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     I don't understand the

                   question.

         12                     MR. KLARL:     The expansion parking lot.

                                MR. VERGANO:     The expansion parking

         13        lot, would the access to that expansion parking lot be

                   physically blocked?

         14                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     Absolutely not.  We have

                   during these events -- (interrupted)

         15                     MR. VERGANO:     I mean for days you don't

                   have these events, this way people aren't using the

         16        additional expansion parking area say on a normal

                   business night.

         17                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     They could.  As you

                   know, we have on special nights and on weekends we have

         18        valet parking and they set up professional valet

                   parking and they set up the use of the parking

         19        facilities which they have and will have.

                                MR. VERGANO:     The proposed parking area

         20        to accommodate the catered events at the tent, that

                   parking area in particular, would that still be opened

         21        to valet parking or patron parking?

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     For the

         22        restaurant/hotel?

                                MR. VERGANO:     Yes.

         23                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     It's accessible, but not

                   open.  It's available there as a special parking

         24        facility for the catered tent.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     The cooking

         25        facilities will also be in some kind of enclosed area?
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          2                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     That's correct.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     A tent?

          3                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     It's a 30 by 30 facility

                   which is approved for these types of events by code.

          4        Also there will be rest room facilities down there, so

                   none of these are going to infringe upon the present

          5        facilities of the hotel/restaurant.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Like portable

          6        toilets?

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     Yeah, but it's not

          7        like -- this is a 24 foot situation that looks better

                   than restaurant at the Four Seasons.  It's the Four

          8        Seasons of New York City.  It's a $51,000 expenditure

                   for all these facilities.  This is keeping with what I

          9        do and the types of things we do.  I do wish you would

                   come visit what we have done at Monteverde.  If you

         10        haven't, it's special.  I don't mean that in an

                   arrogant way or egotistical way.  It's something that I

         11        really take pride in doing.  As far as the tent is

                   concerned there are two reasons for it:  1, as I said

         12        it's been requested by many, and number 2, is the fact

                   that it's truly a fine facility for these kinds of

         13        events for the location that it's in.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Mr. Friedberg, again,

         14        getting back to the discussion we had during the work

                   session, by keeping it up permanently, it's effectively

         15        increasing, as Ivan has just mentioned, the area by

                   over 5,000 square feet with associated parking.  Maybe

         16        if there's a way that we can close it during periods

                   where it's not -- you don't have catered events,

         17        enclose the overflow parking area, enclose the

                   facility, but forgive me, based on our conversations

         18        the other week it seemed like we would just disassemble

                   the tent when the event was completed, this way it

         19        would not be used as an extension to the restaurant.

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     I don't see it as an

         20        extension to the restaurant.  I think to really cut

                   through it, Ed, the simple situation would be it would

         21        take us at least 3 days to put it up for an event.  If

                   the event is 1, 2, 3 days, whatever it takes to run the

         22        event and then it would take 2 or 3 days to take it

                   down.  If we were talking about a facility of a

         23        proposal of that nature, at this time I would certainly

                   accept that.

         24                     MR. VERGANO:     Would the event occur

                   during the times that the restaurant was opened?

         25                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     Yes.
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          2                     MR. VERGANO:     So you could have a full

                   restaurant and a separate catered event at the same

          3        time?

                                MR. FREIDBERG:     That's correct.

          4                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     What's the capacity

                   of the restaurant?

          5                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     The capacity of the

                   restaurant with all the various areas, as you know it's

          6        not one big restaurant, we hold now approximately 260

                   during the summer months because of the outside patio

          7        and we hold approximately 160, 170 indoors in the 3

                   restaurant facilities which includes the Governor's

          8        Room, main dining room and veranda, and of course the

                   lounge area.

          9                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     And the tent would

                   add another 160?

         10                     MR. KLARL:     300.

                                MR. FREIDERG:     300.  Just as a

         11        postscript to what I say, I invite you all up to visit

                   us.  It's not an advertising approach, but certainly we

         12        would love to see you up there visit with us whatever

                   day you choose.  As I understand it, what we are

         13        working out between us for the present time would be a

                   situation where we could put the tent up let's say a

         14        3-day period to put it up, it runs during the period of

                   time that the event takes place and let's say 3 days to

         15        take it down, clean it, store it.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Again, I don't think

         16        staff has a problem with what you are proposing for the

                   catered events, it makes all the sense in the world.  I

         17        guess what we are having difficulty getting out of our

                   heads is the appearance of an expansion of an existing

         18        facility.

                                MR. KLINE:     Let's split this and

         19        consider this as a request for almost a one time event

                   sometime in late May.  I assume you don't have anything

         20        this weekend or next weekend because it would be

                   awfully tight on time.  If the board could approve this

         21        for a one time use in late May and bring this back to

                   amend the site plan at the June meeting so we could

         22        keep this, if we could -- if it's doable keep it going

                   for the rest of the warm weather.

         23                     MR. FREIDBERG:     One thing I have a

                   problem with that, we are looking at weddings now for

         24        July and August.  These people are spending a great

                   deal of money in this community.  Remember, all the tax

         25        revenues are going to the benefit of the community.
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          2        The tax base on the restaurant has gone from the

                   community from just the property taxes from 5,000 to

          3        50,000 and as far as sales tax is concerned sharing is

                   well over $200,000 a year.  This tent will increase

          4        that revenue stream to the town substantially.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Are these catered events

          5        weekend events?

                                MR. FRIEDBERG:     It's whenever they want

          6        to do it.  If they want to do it on Tuesday or

                   Wednesday.  Remember, this is a facility that has done

          7        weddings and other kinds of events for years and years

                   and years, this isn't something knew.  Just that

          8        requests have been made.  It's not an expansion of the

                   ala carte business which the restaurant is as far as

          9        brunch, lunch and dinner is concerned.  It's strictly

                   for special type of catered events.

         10                     MR. HEVERIN:     I'm Sean Heverin, the

                   construction manager of Monteverde.  Maybe to help the

         11        situation, my understanding is that you would like to

                   block off these parking areas for the tent, close the

         12        area down around the tent to make sure that no overflow

                   from the restaurant can possibly be used in the tent;

         13        correct?

                                MR. VERGANO:     That would help.  That

         14        would I think help eliminate the appearance of just an

                   expansion of the existing facility.

         15                     MR. HEVERIN:     One of my concerns in

                   erecting the tent, taking it down isn't just the time

         16        and expense which would add to the cost of truly

                   holding a function there, but also to the wear and tear

         17        of the tent structure itself.  We do have tent poles

                   that are 20 feet tall and the tent liners, it's a

         18        pretty complicated situation.  One of the other things

                   I know Mr. Friedberg and special events coordinator and

         19        facilities are concerned about is the future sales for

                   next year.  I know that they do have two requests in

         20        presently for events that the restaurant itself

                   couldn't cater and that's one of the reasons that they

         21        are looking for the tent.  But also to be able to show

                   prospective wedding couples where they may be able to

         22        have their wedding under a tent.  Of course, that's not

                   a restaurant use, we would be walking somebody through

         23        and I'd like to make sure that that would be okay if we

                   are allowed to keep it up.  But certainly blocking off

         24        the parking lots and blocking off the tent structure

                   itself to ensure that there isn't any restaurant

         25        traffic going down there, I don't think that would be

          1                             WILLIAM ZUTT                        63

          2        objectionable at all.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Can we do this

          3        subject to your approval and the fire department's

                   approval?

          4                     MR. VERGANO:     That's fine.  I think

                   what Sean had just mentioned was a giant step in the

          5        right direction, that's fine.  Why don't we leave it at

                   that.  Incorporate Sean's suggestion.

          6                     MR. KLARL:     When you say October, are

                   you talking about October 1 through 15 or through 31?

          7                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     Depending upon the

                   weather.  It's really through the end of October.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Make sure you take

                   it down if a hurricane comes.

          9                     MR. FRIEDBERG:     The season is coming up

                   for the politicos and we just had a fine fund-raiser

         10        this past weekend, I'll whisper it, the Democratic

                   party.  That being the case because I don't know what

         11        your political affiliations are.  If we had the tent it

                   would -- we probably would have done it in the tent

         12        basically because of the facility.  It was a catered

                   event.  So I think you're suggestion, Mr. Kessler, as

         13        far as us working with Mr. Vergano and his people is

                   fine.  Mr. Vergano and I have had a fine relationship,

         14        him and his staff.  They have been apprised on an

                   ongoing basis about the events that are happening on

         15        the improvements up there and we look forward to

                   working with him and his staff in the future.

         16                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Miss Todd?

                                MS. TODD:     I make a motion we refer

         17        this back to staff.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Subject to the fire

         18        department.

                                MS. TODD:     I make a motion we approve

         19        the tent subject to approval by the Department of

                   Technical Services.

         20                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     And the fire

                   department?

         21                     MS. TODD:     And the fire department.

                                MR. ZUTT:     And your blessing includes

         22        putting it up once and taking it down once.

                                MR. KLARL:     A continuous tent.

         23                     MR. ZUTT:     6 month tent.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Pending Ed's

         24        approval?

                                MR. ZUTT:     But you have no objection to

         25        that?
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          2                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     No.  Second?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

          3                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

          4                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  LETTER

          5        DATED APRIL 21ST, 2006 FROM RALPH MASTROMONACO FOR A

                   PROPOSED 35 BY 18 FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO AT THE TENAMPA

          6        RESTAURANT LOCATED ON THE CORNER OF ALBANY POST ROAD

                   AND FURNACE DOCK ROAD.  Good evening, Ralph.  I think

          7        we are under a misconception here.  You just want to

                   have the ability to put tables and chairs outside?

          8                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     Yes.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     There's no

          9        building being proposed?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     No.

         10                     MS. TODD:     No bathroom facilities?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     No.  I don't know if

         11        you know where the place is or ever been there or not,

                   the owners have made absolutely wonderful change to the

         12        place and it's very popular and I see people in there

                   all the time.  There is some you are general see to my

         13        request because they need this space for May 5th.

                                MR. KLINE:     As the many, many signs on

         14        their structure would indicate.

                                MR. KLARL:     That would be the 5th of

         15        May?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     Yes.  Today being

         16        May 2nd.  It's my belief that this is something that

                   your board can do with a motion, whatever.

         17                     MR. KLINE:     Are they going to put a

                   patio down between now and May 5th?

         18                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     The patio is there

                   right now.  It's a level area.

         19                     MR. KLINE:     Behind the trees?

                                SPEAKER FROM THE FLOOR:     Mastromonaco.

         20        Yes.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     So there's

         21        absolutely nothing outside of taking a table, putting

                   it outside with some chairs and an umbrella, that's

         22        what is being proposed?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     If I simplify that,

         23        yes.  They may need to put something down on the ground

                   to make it a little firmer, flag stone.

         24                     MR. KLARL:     So they can construct a

                   flagstone patio.

         25                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     But a flag stone
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          2        patio could be flag stones all over.  I'm not sure how

                   they want to do that.  They probably will need to

          3        stabilize that bit of dirt that's out there.  It is a

                   level area right now accessed by one of the doors from

          4        the restaurant and it doesn't look like it would be a

                   very difficult thing, or a problem for any reason at

          5        all that I can think of.  I think the -- we need

                   something, I don't know why, maybe it's a site plan

          6        amendment, you need some sort of approval.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     I guess this is also

          7        seasonal?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     If it's outdoor

          8        seating, yes.  There's no roof.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Certainly you would have

          9        to demonstrate that there's adequate parking what

                   affects to an amount of expansion of the restaurant and

         10        I know what at the work session we talk about possibly

                   going there and take a look at where it is located,

         11        impacting neighboring property, noise issue.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Can we approve it

         12        temporarily so they can get through May 5th and then

                   revisit it?

         13                     MR. VERGANO:     The board can do whatever

                   this likes.

         14                     MR. KLINE:     One of the concerns I have

                   and we have addressed this before dealing with the

         15        patios, you are really expanding the capacity of this

                   restaurant.  I like this restaurant, I eat there

         16        sometimes.  But it's got a parking problem.  The first

                   time I went there, in fact, I had to go back to my

         17        house basically, park back on my own road.

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     That might have been

         18        when they first opened.

                                MR. KLINE:     But it was full.  It wasn't

         19        that their parking was small when they first opened, it

                   was just full.

         20                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     I'm not sure if you

                   recall expansion of this restaurant, essentially

         21        it's like a bar crowd walking in and out and there may

                   be some dining out there.  There's a certain amount of

         22        people that are just waiting in line to sit down, so

                   it's not -- there may be 6 tables out there, something

         23        like that.  I can't see that that would be a major

                   impact on parking.  It's not a perfect area.

         24                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     8 tables?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     It shows 8 tables.

         25        We just put that in there show something.
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          2                     MR. VERGANO:     Will there be live music

                   outside?

          3                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     I can tell you that

                   there will be no live music outside.  I don't think

          4        that's the issue.  I think it's just outdoor seating.

                                MR. KLINE:     It sure does look something

          5        is festive is planned for May 5.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     You are not going to

          6        disturb the motel across the street.

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     It's an early

          7        closing restaurant.

                                MR. VERGANO:     For the record, our code

          8        does require certain number of parking spaces per seat,

                   so additional tables usually results in additional

          9        parking.  Maybe what we can do is approve this subject

                   to the applicant showing to us that there's adequate

         10        parking?

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Okay, we will do it

         11        fast so you can get it by Friday.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Yes.

         12                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Mr. Bernard?

                                MR. BERNARD:     Mr. Chairman, I guess we

         13        are into the going to need a site visit, so we will

                   approve this application subject to approval by staff.

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor.

         16                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  LETTER

         17        DATED APRIL 21, 2006 FROM RALPH MASTROMONACO, FOR A

                   PROPOSED 36 BY 22 FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO AT FORTUNA

         18        RESTAURANT LOCATED ON THE CORNER OF ALBANY POST ROAD

                   AND BALTIC PLACE.

         19                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     This is a little bit

                   different.  The same urgency doesn't exist.  If you

         20        want to look at this on a site walk it's not the same

                   emergency.  We are just here to see what needs to be

         21        done on this particular one.  There's absolutely plenty

                   of parking all around the site so I don't think that's

         22        an issue.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     Is there landscaping

         23        there now that has to be ripped out?

                                MR. MASTROMONACO:     Yes.

         24                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     So we should look at it

                   to see if it's going to work or not.

         25                     MR. MASTROMONACO:     There is some small
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          2        bushes there.  Essentially what they want to do is move

                   that to the outside.

          3                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Mr. Bianchi?

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     Well, did you submit a

          4        letter from the landlord about this?  Has the landlord

                   approved this?

          5                     MR. MASTROMONACO:    I know that the

                   landlord has, but I don't know if you have the --

          6                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     We should get written

                   approval from the landlord.

          7                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Mr. Bianchi?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Mr. Chairman, I'll move

          8        to schedule a site visit for June 4th at a time to be

                   determined.

          9                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MS. TODD:     Second.

         10                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

         11                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  LETTER

         12        DATED APRIL 17TH, 2006 FROM JOSEPH DENNIS, P.E., FOR

                   CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED FREESTANDING SIGN AT ANNSVILLE

         13        MOBIL.  Mr. Kline?

                                MR. KLINE:     I believe we are going to

         14        move to approve this subject to confirming -- making

                   sure it confirms with the site plan and D.O.T.

         15        requirements.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     The signage for the

         16        site plan and then there's an issue in terms of the

                   curb cut?

         17                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Yes.  We would like

                   them to bring the curb a little bit further away from

         18        the last island and just to give a little bit more

                   maneuver ability for cars exiting and entering the

         19        site.  Mr. Dennis and I are going to be addressing that

                   issue with the D.O.T.

         20                     MR. DENNIS:     Joseph Dennis of Morris

                   Associates.

         21                     MR. VERGANO:     Did you get the fax?

                                MR. DENNIS:     I did get the fax.  I

         22        spoke and the D.O.T. had taken a hard look of the

                   arrangement of the entrances and basically the openings

         23        that are there now, at least in that area, is what was

                   existing before the project started so there was some

         24        hesitancy or reluctance to make any changes of the

                   location of that entrance.  We can broach it and

         25        discuss it with D.O.T., but I don't know what the
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          2        outcome will be.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Motion.  Second?

          3                     MR. BIANCHI:     We need a motion.

                                MR. KLINE:     I think I made a motion.

          4        Is that still the right motion?

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     What's the motion?

          5                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     To approve the sign

                   subject to the site plan and work with them on the curb

          6        cut and also be sure that signage on the site complies

                   with the site.

          7                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Right.

                                MR. KLINE:     That's my motion.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

          9                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Last item

                   under correspondence.  PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE PLAZA IN

         10        FRONT OF SLEEPY'S AND LANE BRYANT AT THE CORTLANDT TOWN

                   CENTER PER PLANNING BOARD RESOLUTION NUMBER 32-05 For

         11        BEST BUY.

                                MR. LYNCH:     My name is Tim Lynch.  I'm

         12        a landscape designer for Maple Leaf Associates and we

                   are a contractor working for the Town Center.  If you

         13        can go on to the next slide and we can come back to the

                   plan.  Actually two back.  That is the existing plaza

         14        and I think that there are some problems with it as far

                   as with the appearance, with the current site

         15        furnishing as far as benches and garbage pails and

                   mostly with the design of the plaza and also I notice

         16        that the planting beds are at grade and that leads to

                   both salt damage with the plants that are in there and

         17        vandalism.  This is the sighted plan.  Essentially the

                   main part of the plan would be raised planters, 3 and a

         18        half feet high.  There's 3, one large planter, medium

                   size, and then a small planter.  If you can go onto the

         19        next.  Some of the current problems that are there are

                   there's a stamped concrete red that is supposed to look

         20        like brick that I that is really falling apart.  The

                   existing design, beds do not line up to any of the

         21        stores and do not line up to the sidewalks and then

                   there's inappropriate plant material.  There's some

         22        plant material that is not able to withstand the heat

                   conditions there as well as the salting or the calcium

         23        that is applied for the ice.  Again, the beds are at

                   ground level in both the beds and the seater slide

         24        bench are pretty weak and suggestion acceptable to

                   vandalism.  Some of the site furnishings that we will

         25        be using we are putting in 7 of the steel sites brand
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          2        steel benches which are probably -- they are a very

                   popular bench because of their durability.  On top of

          3        the 3 and a half foot high plant tiers discourage

                   people from sitting on them we will be putting in a

          4        12-inch high iron wicket fence.  It's often seen down

                   in the city to discourage people from sitting on

          5        stoops.  As far as the planters would be made out of

                   the union any lock brand concrete block that you see on

          6        the right photo and the pavement would be the new

                   pavement which would replace the stamped concrete would

          7        be made above uni-lock mix and the top left photo has

                   what is called the band running through there, it's

          8        darker in color, that's called uni-granite and it's a

                   paver that resembles granite and then the lower paver

          9        is called Brussels block which is a very common

                   uni-lock.  As far as the plant materials, there would

         10        be a grouping of 3 multi-stemmed eastern red buds in

                   the median and small planters and there are these

         11        Hinoki Fall Cyprus in the large planter and then the

                   largest trees would be in the large planter there would

         12        be a grouping of 3 multi-stemmed muscle wood trees

                   which is again going to be raised off of the ground

         13        which will discourage people from grabbing onto the

                   branches and provide immediate shade.  Then down below

         14        that plant material will be different types of

                   ornamental grass and this is another shrub in there,

         15        Spirea.  Another example of an ornamental grass.  With

                   this design I've brought it to the town here and have

         16        gone over the design with Rich DiSanza on 3 separate

                   occasions and he's made some minor changes and

         17        recommendations, mostly having to do with the plant

                   material and he's kind of at the point he's pretty

         18        satisfied with the design and with the choices as far

                   as again going back to the hard escaped choice, there

         19        are some problems as far as with its current appearance

                   and with these heart escapes both starting with raising

         20        the planters and getting them off of the ground,

                   fixing the current pavement and then installing site

         21        furnishings that are both attractive as well as

                   being vandal resistant and something that is going to

         22        be an improvement not only looking good immediately

                   after it's constructed, but it is designed to last for

         23        quite awhile.

                                MR. KLINE:     The planters, raised

         24        planters, that's a great idea.  Why would you not want

                   people to sit on the edge of those?

         25                     MR. LYNCH:     Just because they are at a
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          2        certain height.  They are 3 and a half feet high.

                   Anything lower than that is going to be turned into a

          3        skateboard park kind of thing and even at the 3 and a

                   half feet high if it's flat on top you will have people

          4        jumping up on the benches an you will have kids run

                   around on top of it and once people are sitting on too

          5        much they are leaning back into the plants and it leads

                   to people sitting on it and using it in a way they

          6        shouldn't be using it and it liens on broken

                   branches and leads to a deterioration of that.  The

          7        design that fence is an attractive fence that

                   encourages them to use the benches.

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     So the fence is at

                   the front of the lot?

          9                     MR. LYNCH:     The blocks are capped with

                   a coping unit that is 10 inches wide and that coping

         10        unit the fence would run down the center of that coping

                   unit.  The coping unit is adhesive and installed onto

         11        the block with adhesive and the fence is drilled into

                   the block and installed in the way that a cast iron

         12        typically is installed.

                                MR. BERNARD:     I understand it really

         13        well.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     One comment that the

         14        Architectural Advisory Council had was whether or not

                   the pavers could also be extended over to this area.

         15        That's not stamped concrete, that's your regular

                   concrete walk area right there?

         16                     MR. LYNCH:     Right.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     But the stamped

         17        concrete is this area right here that will be new

                   pavers?

         18                     MR. LYNCH:     Correct.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     And over here too?

         19                     MR. LYNCH:     Yes.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     So you're saying it's

         20        not possible to put the pavers in this area because

                   that's your standard concrete walkway that you don't

         21        want to touch?

                                MR. LYNCH:     I wouldn't get into

         22        touching that.  It works right now.  There are some

                   existing channels.  If the building was -- there's not

         23        quite enough pitch that should be there right now and

                   that has been a problem before at the entrance to Lane

         24        Bryant and Sleepy's as far as standing water at the

                   entrance and maple leaf did install drains there.  The

         25        concrete just doesn't have the pitch that it should
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          2        have and that again goes all the way out to where the

                   curb height is.

          3                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     All right.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Miss Todd?

          4                     MS. TODD:     I'm not sure what the motion

                   should be?

          5                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Receive and file and

                   work with staff on making this change.

          6                     MS. TODD:     I make a motion we receive

                   and file this information and instruct the applicant to

          7        work with staff on finalizing the plan.

                                MR. ZUTT:     Just one question, Mr.

          8        Chairman, or one request.  There was a 90 day bond

                   posted in February.  There was this condition was a

          9        condition of issuance of the CO for Best Buy.  If you

                   think back to last September when you approved that

         10        site plan.  So we have about 3 weeks remaining on the

                   performance bonds, so we are going to -- we appreciate

         11        your support, of course, we would just like to know

                   from Mr. Vergano and staff whether we are ready to go

         12        ahead on this or are we going to have to come back to

                   the planning board.

         13                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     With regard to this

                   plaza design?

         14                     MR. ZUTT:     We are ready today to go

                   with this.

         15                     MR. VERGANO:     Just to clarify, I

                   believe the planning board has seen it and agreed to

         16        allow staff to allow staff to proceed with the concept

                   with Cortlandt Town Center.

         17                     MR. ZUTT:     And you're okay with it?

                                MR. VERGANO:     I'm okay with it.

         18                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         19                     MR. BERNARD:     I would like staff to at

                   least take a look at the design -- I would like staff

         20        to request, at least take a look at the design that has

                   this fence off of the top of the raised planters and

         21        move to the back of the wall of the planters so people

                   could silt along the edge of that.  I thought the whole

         22        idea of this area when the town center was approved for

                   kind after central gathering place for people.  One

         23        reason it doesn't work now is that there is no shade,

                   there's very uncomfortable benches to sit on.  It

         24        doesn't act as a gathering center at all and it seems

                   to me more seating would be beneficial to the purpose

         25        that it was originally designed for.  But you guys take
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          2        a look at it.  If you don't like a fence in the back I

                   can live with it.

          3                     MR. VERGANO:     I think there would have

                   to be some modifications to the plans to accommodate

          4        seating.

                                MR. LYNCH:     One thing I can comment on,

          5        at a height of 3 and a half feet it wouldn't be wise

                   for the Cortlandt Town Center to call that a seat

          6        because it's a dangerous height and again it leads to

                   people -- it's not an approved seating as far as -- at

          7        that site.

                                MR. BERNARD:     You are saying here it's

          8        a liability problem?

                                MR. LYNCH:     It is a liability problem.

          9        If they say we have seating out here and at that

                   height --

         10                     MR. KLARL:     It would be about a foot

                   taller than that table.  The table is about 30 inches.

         11                     MR. LYNCH:     Right.  It's at that

                   height.  To try to keep it as the top of the planter.

         12                     MR. BERNARD:     I understand.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     What are we on?  On

         13        the question.  All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Onto our 4

                   items of new business.  APPLICATION OF SAMMY MUSA

         15        ELJAMAL OF BEST RENT PROPERTIES FOR AMENDED SITE

                   DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL AND A WETLAND PERMIT FOR THE

         16        CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW ACCESS DRIVE ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF

                   THE SITE AND FOR A 1,700 SQUARE FOOT BUILDING ADDITION

         17        TO THE EXISTING GAS STATION/CAR WASH LOCATED ON THE

                   SOUTHWEST CORNER OF ROUTE 6 AND THE CORTLANDT TOWN

         18        CENTER ACCESS DRIVE AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED

                   "CONCEPT PLAN" PREPARED BY BOHLER ENGINEERING, P.C.,

         19        DATED FEBRUARY 23, 2006 (SEE PRIOR PB 25-90 AND 42-94)

                                MR. SANTA BARBARA:     Good evening, Mr.

         20        Chairman, members of the board.  I'm Angelo Santa

                   Barbara from Bohler Engineering here to represent the

         21        applicant tonight.  As you stated this property is

                   located on the corner of East Main Street and Westbrook

         22        Drive.  What we are proposing on the site is a building

                   addition.  I don't know if you can zoom in a little bit

         23        on that building.  The building addition and some minor

                   site modifications, rearranged the parking a little

         24        bit.  The main thing that's going on here, I guess as

                   we are looking at an additional access drive to the

         25        north of the property and the reason for that, I guess,
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          2        is that currently the two access drives located on East

                   Main Street, they are very close to that intersection

          3        and from what I understand in working with the town

                   there is some traffic issues at that intersection and

          4        basically this is to try and alleviate some of those

                   problems.  There is an issue with wetlands where the

          5        access road is proposed.  That blind that is on there

                   now is kind of a guess it hasn't been field delineated,

          6        but we are working with the town again to try to get an

                   actual field delineation so we can determine what

          7        exactly the wetland disturbance will be, if any.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     This does nothing

          8        more -- this does nothing for Wendy's?

                                MR. SANTA BARBARA:     No.  This drive

          9        would be just for the car wash facility.  The Wendy's

                   is to the right.  We have no proposal at this point to

         10        include that property.  We are hoping that Wendy's will

                   join this effort and extend to the driveway.

         11                     MR. VERGANO:     We are hoping that

                   Wendy's will join this effort there and extend the

         12        driveway to their property.  Again, the main traffic

                   issue of course coming in and out of Wendy's and Mobil

         13        making left in and out is terrible.  Here you have an

                   option of going to the signalized intersection and of

         14        course making a right onto the driveway and/or the

                   access road I should say to access this site.  There

         15        would be two-way traffic by into and out of the

                   facilities.

         16                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Should we refer this

                   back to staff?

         17                     MR. VERGANO:     Yes.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Make a motions.

         18                     MR. KLINE:     Mr. Chairman, I move we

                   refer this back to staff.

         19                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MS. TODD:     Second.

         20                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

         21                     (Board in Favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.

         22        APPLICATION OF JOHN RINALDI FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

                   APPROVAL AND A WETLAND PERMIT FOR A 3 LOT MAJOR

         23        SUBDIVISION OF AN 8.59 ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY LOCATED

                   ON THE EAST SIDE OF BUTTONWOOD ROAD APPROXIMATELY 2,000

         24        FEET SOUTH OF ROUTE 202 AS SHOWN ON A 3 PAGE SET OF

                   DRAWINGS ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN FOR

         25        JOHN RINALDI" PREPARED BY TIMOTHY L. CRONIN, III, P.E.,
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          2        DATED APRIL 21, 2006.  (SEE PRIOR PB 8-05).  Somebody

                   want to make a motion?

          3                     MS. TODD:     I make a motion we refer

                   this back to staff.

          4                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Second.

          5                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

                   All in favor?

          6                     (Board in favor)

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?

          7        APPLICATION FOR TCDV, INC. FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

                   APPROVAL FOR A PROPOSED 25-FOOT BY 80-FOOT STORAGE

          8        BUILDING LOCATED AT THE SOUTH END OF STEVENSON STREET

                   AS SHOWN ON A 2 PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "SITE

          9        DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR TCDV DEVELOPMENT, INC." PREPARED

                   BY TIMOTHY L. CRONIN, III, P.E., DATED APRIL 21, 2006.

         10        Where is Stevenson Street?

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     Stevenson Street is

         11        just to the west of Town Hall here near Hampton Oaks

                   Shopping Center.  It's actually dead ends where the

         12        Hampton Oaks Shopping Center is.  This property is

                   adjacent to the -- it's in a commercial zone.

         13                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Motion?

                                MR. BIANCHI:     Motion to refer back to

         14        staff.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

         15                     MR. BERNARD:     Second.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question.

         16        All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         17                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed.  TOWN BOARD

                   REFERRALS TO THE PLANNING BOARD FOR PROPOSED ZONING

         18        CHANGES FOR THE REZONING OF THE FDR VA PROPERTY FROM

                   R-40 TO R-80 FOR LIMITED SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR SINGLE

         19        FAMILY RESIDENCES PROPOSED TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE

                   NEW CROS ZONING DISTRICT AND FOR MODIFICATION TO THE

         20        FLOOR AREA RATIO REQUIREMENTS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE

                   (SEE PRIOR PB 10-05).  Motion please?

         21                     MR. BERNARD:     So what happens with

                   this?

         22                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     We would recommend a

                   public hearing for the next meeting.

         23                     MR. KLARL:     6/6.

                                MR. VERSCHOOR:     Do you require any

         24        description or is it clear to everyone what is going on

                   here?

         25                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     It's very clear.
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          2                     MR. KLINE:     Not to belabor this at

                   11:30, a third of these seems extremely vague.

          3                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Which one is that?

                                MR. KLINE:     Floor area ratio.  I

          4        understand the concept.  I've worked on floor ratio

                   stuff in my life, but this is just a very vague, just

          5        give us some ideas.

                                MR. VERGANO:     We have some text

          6        prepared.  We will send it off on all these issues.

                                CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Make a motion?

          7                     MS. TODD:     I make a motion to refer

                   this back to staff?

          8                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     And set a public

                   hearing?

          9                     MS. TODD:     And set a public hearing for

                   the next meeting, June 6th.

         10                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Second?

                                MR. KLINE:     Second.

         11                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     On the question?

                                MR. BERNARD:     On the question, you will

         12        give us a description of the area that we are talking

                   about?

         13                     MR. VERSCHOOR:     Yes, we will.

                                MR. VERGANO:     Yes, we will.

         14                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     All in favor?

                                (Board in Favor)

         15                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     Opposed?  Mr. Kline.

                                MR. KLINE:     I move we adjourn.

         16                     CHAIRMAN KESSLER:     11:35.
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